BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusalion Against: Case No, 5000
FOUR FIETY SUTTER PHARMACY and OAH No. 2015050642

ELAINE CHAN, Owner
STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 45225 DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO
RESPONDENT BRANDON VALOR

ELAINE CHAN BRODT

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH

36761

THINH PHU NGUYEN

Pharmacist License No. RPH 64877
BRANDON VALOR BRODT

139 W, Richmond Avenue, #B
Richmond, CA 94801

Pharmacist License No. RPH 43082

Respondents.

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the Bbard of
Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.
This Decision shall become effective at 5 p.m. on March 30, 2016.

Itis s0 ORDERED on February 29, 2016,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

A

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Aitorney General of California
DIANN SOKOQLOFF,
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
CARTER OTT
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 221660 :
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor '
P.O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2219
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270
E-mail: Carter.Ott{@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARYD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

-FLAINE CHAN, Owner’

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5000
FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY and OAH No. 2015050642

450 Sutter Street, #710, 7th Floor  STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
San Francisco, California 94108 DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO

RESPONDENT BRA R
Pharmacy Permit No, PITY 45225 | BRODT NDON VALO

ELAINE CHAN
450 Sutter Street, Ste. 713, 7™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108-

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH
36761

THINH PHU NGUYEN
106 Summerrain Drive
South San Francisco, CA 94080

Pharmaéist License No. RPH 64877
BRANDON VALOR BRODT

139 W. Richmond Avenue, #B
Richmond, CA 94801

Pharmacist License No. RPH 43082

Respondents. -

1

ST]PULATEDI SETTLEMENT AND DISCIPLINARY (ORDER AS TO RESPONDENT BRANDCON VALOR BRODT
In the Matter of the Accusaiion and Petition to Revoke Probation Against Four Fifty Sutter Pharm,, ¢l ol,
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IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
| | PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (“Complainant”) is the Executive Qfficer of the Board of Pharmacy.
She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this métter by Kamala
D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Carteri Ott, Deputy Attorney General,

1. On or about March I, 1990, the Boar& of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No.

RPH 43082 to Respondent Brandon Valor Brodt (“Respondent”). The Pharmacist License was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this matter and will expire on
Janvary 31, 2016, unless renewed, Respondent is represented by Robert Hahn, Law Office of
Gould & Hahn, 2550 Ninth Strect, Suite 101, Berkeley, CA 94710.
JURISDICTION

2. Accusation and Pétition to Revoke Probation No, 5000 was filed before the Board of
Pharmacy (“Board™), Department of Consumer Affairs, and properly served on Respondent on
September 25, 2014, Respondent timely filed a Notice of Defense conteéting that pleading. A
First Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation was filed before the Board and
SBWed on Respondent on October 27, 2015, A Second Amended Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation, the operative pleading, was filed before the Board and served oﬁ Respondent,
A copy of the Second Amended Ac.c'usati.on and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 5000 is
( attached as Exhibit A, | ‘

l‘ 3. Attached to the Second Amended Aééuéation and Petition to Revoke Probation No.
5000 is a Decision and Order from a prior action brought, in part, against Respondent, titled /n
the Matter lOf the Accusation Against Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy, Brandon Brodlt, and Elaine
Chan, Case No, 3979, Tﬁe Accusation in that matter, Accusation No. 3979, was filed before the
Board and properly served on Respondent on August 22, 2011. The allegations in Accusation
No, 3979 were resolved by Stipulated Settlement and‘ Disciplinary Order, signed by Respondent
on Décember 6, 2012, adopted by the Board, and made effective on June 20, 2013, Respondent’s

Pharmacist License is currently on probation as a result of that stipulated settlement.
2

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO RESPONDENT BRANDON VALOR BRODT

In the Matter of the Aecusation and Petition io Revoke Probation Againsi Four Fifly Sutter Pharm., ei al,
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ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

4, Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
charges and allegations in the Second Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No.
5000. Respondent has also carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order.

5. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the ‘charges and allegations in the Second Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke
Probatioﬁ; the right to be represented by counsel at his own ekpense; the right to confront and
cross-examine the witn.esses against him; the right to preéent evidence and to testify on his own
behalf the right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the
production of documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision;
and all other rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable
laws,

6.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and-

-every right set forth above,

CULPABILITY

7. Respondent understands that the charges and all_egations: in the Second Amended
Accuéation‘and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 5000, if iaroven at hearing, constitute cause for
imposing discipline upon his Pharmacists License. For the purpose of resolving the Second |
Amended Aceusation and Petition to Reveke Probation No. 5000 without the expense and
uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at a hearing, Complainant could
establish a factual basis for the charges in the Second Amended Accusation and Petition to
RevokerProbation No. 5000 and that those charges constitute cause fof diséipline. Respondent
gives up his right to contest that cause for discipliﬁe e_ﬁists Based on those charges.

8.  Respondent agrees that his Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and he agrees
to be bound by the Board’s probaticnary ferms as -sé:t forth in the Disciplinary Order below. |
Hitt

it |
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CONTINGENCY

9,  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by tlﬂe.Board. Réspondent understands
and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board may communicate directly
with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by
Respondent or her counsel. By signing the stiputation; Respondent understands and agrees that
he may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board
considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt tﬁis stipulation as its Decision and Order,
the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinafy Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this
paragraph, it shall be inadmissible indany legal action befween the parties, and the Board shall not
be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter.

10, The parties understand and agrae that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including Portable Document Format
(PD¥} and facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same fofce and effect as.the originals.

11, “This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the par’tieé to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreément,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporanébus agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modiﬁed, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized" representative of each of the parties.

12, In oonsideratilon éf the foregoing admissioné and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order: ‘

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License No: 43082, issued to Respondent
Brandon Valor Brodt, is revoked, However, the revocation is stayed and the prior Disciplinéry
Order from Case No. 3979, is superseded by this Disciplinary Order. Respondent’s Pharmacist
License is reinstated on probation and his probation is extended for an additional year, from June

it
4
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" in submission of reports as directed may 'b_c added to the total period of probation. Moreover, if

20, 2017 to June 20, 2018, under the following modified terms and conditions, beginning on the
effective date of the Decision and Order: |

1.  Obey All Laws _

Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations.

-Respondent shall report any of the following occurrences to the Board, in writing, within

seventy-two hours of such occurrence:

. an arrest-or issuance of a criminal complaint for vielation of any provision of the -
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws, |

. a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or indictment.

e a conviction of any crime.
« discipline, citation, or other administrafcive action filed by any state or federal agency
. which involves ReSpondent’s Pharmacist License or which is related to the practice of
pharmacy or the manufacttiring, obtaining, handlipg, distributing, billing, or charging
for-any drug, device or controlled substance.

Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.

2. Report io the Board

Respondent shall report to the Board quarterly, on a schedule as directéd‘by the Board or its

designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. .Among other
requirements, Respondent shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there has
been compliance with all the terms and conditii;ns of probation. Failure to submit timely reports

in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any period(s) of delinquency

the final probation repért is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically extended until
such time as the final report is madé and accepted by the Board,
I | -

i
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3, Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent shall appear in person for interviews
with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the Board or
its designee, Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to Board
staff, or failure to appear for two or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its designee
during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation.

4.  Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondent shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the Board’s
meonitoring and investigation of Respondent’s compliance with the terms and conditions of their
probation. Failure to cooperate shal be considered a violation of probation.

5.  Continuing Education

Respondent shall provide evidence of efforts to maintain skill and knowledge as a
pharmacist as directed by the board or its designee.

6.  Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, Respondent shall notify all present and prospective

employers of the decision in case number 5000 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed

on Respondent by the decision, as follows:‘

" Within thirty .c,iays of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen days of
Respondent undertaking any new employment, Respondent shali cause his direct supervisor,
pharmacist-in-charge (including each new pharmacist-in-charge employed during Respondent’s
tenure of employment) and owner to report to the Bo.ard in \;vriting acknowledging that the listed
individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 3000, and terms and conditions imposed
thereby. It shall bé Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that his employer(s) and/or
supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board,

If Respé,ndent works for or is employed by or through a pharmé.cy employment service,
Respondent must notify his direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge, and owner at every entity |

licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the decision in cas¢ number 5000 in advance

6

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TC RESPONDENT BRANDON VALOR BRODT
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of the Respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this notification must
be provided to the Board upon request. _ | |

Furthermore, within thirty days of the ef‘fective‘date of this decision, and within fifteen days
of Respondent undertaking any new employment by or thrdugh a pharmacy employment service,
Respondeﬁt shall cause his direct supervisor with the pharmacy employment service to report to
the Board in writing acknowledging that he or she has read the decision in case number 5000 and
the terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall bé Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that
his employer(s} and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board.

Failure to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) or to cause that/those
empleyer(s) to submit fimely acknowledgments to the board shall be considered a violation of
probation, .

“Employrment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,
part-time, t’empofary, relief (;r pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any
position for which a pharmagist license is a reqﬁirement or criterion for employment,

whether the Respondent is an empioyee, independent contractor or volunteer.

7. No Supervision of Interns, Serving as Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC), Serviﬂg as
Designated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Consultant

During the period of probation, Respondent shall not serve as a pharmacist-in-charge or
designated répresentativedn'-charge of any entity licensed By the Board unless otherwise specified
in this order. ‘Assumption of any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be
considered a violation of probation,

8.  Reimbursement of Board Costs

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Resbondent shall pay tﬁ the
Board its costs of investigation'and prosecution in the amount of $1,800, Respondent shall make
the payments on a payment ple;n appfoved by the Boardl, There shall be no deviation from this

schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay costs by the

- deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

7
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The filing of bankruptcy by Respondent shall not relieve Respondent of his responsibility to
reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution,

9, Probation Monitoring Costs | .

Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the
Board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the Board on e schedule

as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed

shall be considered a viglation of probation.

10. Status of License -

Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain an active, current license with ‘
the Board, including any period during which suspension or probation is tolled. Failure to -
maintain an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation,

If Respondent’s Pharmacist license expires of is cancelled by operation of law or otherwise
at any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to tolling or
otherwise, upon renewal or rreapplicat-icn Respondent’s Pharmacist license shall be subject to all
terms and conditions of this pfobatioﬁ not previouély satisfied. |

11. License Surrender While on Probatio'n g

Following the effective date of this deéision, should Resﬁbndent cease practice due to
retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of probation,
Respondent may tender their license to the Board for surrender. The Board or its desiénee shall -
have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it deems
appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance ‘of the surrender of the license, Respondent
will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of prebation. This surrender constituteé a
record of discipline and shall become & part of the Respondent’s license history with the Board.

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relinguish his pocket and wall license

o the Board within ten days of notification by the Board that the surrender is accepted,

Respondent may not reapply for any license from the Board for three years from the effective

date of the surrender. Respondent shall meet all requirements applicable to the license sought as

8
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of the date the application for that license is submitted to the Board, including any outstanding
costs,

12. Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment -

Respondent shall notify the Board in writing within ten days of any change of employment,
Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new employer, the nafne
of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if known, Respondent shall further notify the
Board in writing within ten days of a change in name, residence address, mailing address, or
phone number. | |

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s), addfess(es), or
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

13.  Tolling of Probation

Except during periods of suspension, Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, be
employed as a ;ﬂiarmaoist in California for a minimum of 40 hoﬁrs per calendar month. Any
month during which this minimum is not met shlall toll the period of probation, i.e., the period of
probation shall be extended by one month for each month cluriﬂg which this minimum is not met.
During any such period of tolling of probatibn, Respondent must nonetheless comply with all
terms and conditions of probation,

Should Réspondent, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease
practicing as a pharmacist for a rhinirhum' of ‘40 hours per calendar month in California,
Respondent must notify the Board in writing within ten days of the cessation of practice, and
must further notify the board m writing within ten dﬁys of the resumption of practice. Any failure
to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation,

It is a violation of probation tor Respondent’s probation to remain tolled pursuant to the
proyis-ions of this condition fm; a total'periqd, counting consecutive and non-consecutive menths,
exgeedin g thirty-six months. '

“Cessation of practice” means any calendar month during which Respondent is

not practicing as a pharmacist for at least 40 hours, as defined by Business and
: 9
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Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically

transfer any legal or beneficial interest in'aﬁy entity licensed by the Board within ninety days

Professions Code section 4000 ¢f seq. “Resumption of practice” rﬁeans any calendar

month during which Respondent is practicing as a pharmagist for at least 40 hours as

a pharmacisf as defined by Business and Professions Code sectioﬁ 4000 et seq.

14. Violation of Probation |

If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board shall
have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent, and probation shall automatically be extended,
until all terms and conditions have been sé.tisﬁed or the Board has taken other action as deemed
appropriate to treat the failure to cc)mply‘ as a violation of probation, to terminate probation, and
to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent notice
and an oppoi'tunjty to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary order that
was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating thata
violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of the liéense'. If]

& pétition to revoke probetion or an accusation is filed against Respondent during probation, the

extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided, and the cha_fges
and allegations in the Second Amended Accusation shall be deemed true and correct,

15.  Completion of Probation |

Upon wriltten notice by the Board or its designee indicating successful completion of
probation, Respondent’s Pharmacist License will be fully restored,

16. No Ownership of Licensed Premises

Respo;ldent shall not own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a manager,
administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, éssbciate, or partner of any business, firm,

partnership, or corporate currently or hereinafter licensed by the Board, Respondent shall sell or

following the effective date of this Decision and shall immediately thereafter provide written
proof thereof to the Board. Failure toltime]y divést any legal or beneficial intereét(sj or provide

documentation thereof shall be considered a violation of probation,
10
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17. Community Services Program

Within sixty éays of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall submit to the
Board and its designee, for prior approval, a c.ommunity service program in which Respondent
shall-provide free health-care related services on a 'regular basis to'a community or charitable |
facility or agency for at least thirty hours per year while on probation. Within thirty days of
Board approval thereof, Respondent shall submit documentétion to the Board demonstrating
commencement of the community service program. A record of this notification must be
provided to the Board upon request. Respondent shall report on progress with the com.munity
service prdgram in the quarterly reports. Failure to timely subrﬁit, commence, or domply with the
program shall be considered a violation of probation.

18, Remedial Education |

Within sixty days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall submit to the
Board or its designee, for prior appr(;va], an appropriate program of remedial education related to
pharmacy law and operations. The program of remedial -education shall consist of at least 10
hours, which shall be comp]eted within three years after the effectivc date of this decision, at
Rcspondent s own expense. All remedial education shall be in addltion to, and shall not be
credited toward, continuing education (CF) courses used for license renewal purposes.

Failure to timely submit or complete the appfoVed remedial gducafion shall be considered a
violation of probation. The period of probation will be automatically extended until such
remedial educaixon is successfuliy completed and written proof, in a form acceptable to the
Board, is provided to the Board or ifs demgnem

Following the completion of each course, th'e'Boa.rd or its designee may require the
Resiaondent, at his own expense, to take an approved examination to test the Respondent’s'
knowledge of the course. If the Respondent does not achieve a passing score on the examination,
this failure shall be considered a violation of probation, Any such examination failure shall
require Respondent to take another course approved by the Board In the same subject area,

This term applies only to the extent that Respondent has not completed a progl;am of

remedial education as part of his currently pending probation.
. » :

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER A§ TO RESPONDENT BRANDON VALCR BrODT
In the Malter of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation Agamst Four Fifty Sutter Pharm,, ot ai.

¢




10
11
12
13

14 |

13
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

0 o0 -~ =, Lh I~ [#%] M3

Ng{ft ;i':r (1

19, Ethics Course
. Within sixty calendar days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall enroll in -

a course i ethics, at Respondent’s expense, approved in advance by the Board or its designee. |
Failure to inifiate the course within a year after the effective date of this decisicn; and complets it
within two years of the effective date of this decision, is a violation of probation.

Responden't shall submit a certificate of completion to fhe Board or its designee within five
days after completing the course. | '

This term applies only to the extent that Respondent has not completed a course iﬁ ethics as
part of his currently pending probation,

| ACCEPTANCE :
1 have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disoiplinary Orc}er aﬁd have fully

discussed it with my counsel, Robert Hahn, Iunderstand the stipulation and the effect it will have '

on my Pharmacist License, I enter into this Stipulated Settlernent and Disciplinary Order

voluntarily, knowingly, and in‘relligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the

Board of Pharmacy.
DATED: /Z//ﬁ///g ﬁ%ﬁ//]‘w W
+ BRANDON VALOR BRODT
Respondent . .

1 have read and fully discussed with Respondenf Brandon Valor Brodt the terms and
conditions and other matters contained in the gbove Stipulated Settlement and Di'sciplinary Order,

I approve ifs form apd confent. W
DATED: J—;/‘ | < A

ROBERT HAHN
Attorney for Respondent

12
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I ENDORSEMENT
2 The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully
3 || submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.
4 | |
p Dated: s ( 2 L S Respectfully submitied,
i KAMALA D, HARRIS
6 Attorney General of California
: DIANN SOKOLOFF
7 ing Deputy Attorney General
| 8
? CARTER OTT
j 10 Deputy Attorney General
| Attorneys for Complainant
1
' 12
; 13
E’ SF2013502016
14
15
16
17
18
: 19
20
21
! 22
23
24
25
26
27
23
13
STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER AS TO RESPONDENT BRANDON VALOR BRODT
In the Matter of the Accusation and Petition 1o Revoke Probation Against Four Fifiy Sutter Pharm., el al,




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
DIANN SOKOLOFF
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
CARTER OTT
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 169423
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2219
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5000

FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY and | OAH No. 2015050642
ELAINE CHAN, Owner

450 Sutter Street, #710, 7th Floor
San Francisco, California 94108
SECOND AMENDED ACCUSATION
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 45225 AND PETITION TO REVOKE
PROBATION

ELAINE CHAN
450 Sutter Street, Ste. 713, 7™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH
36761

THINH PHU NGUYEN
106 Summerrain Drive
South San Francisco, CA 94080

Pharmacist License No. RPH 64877
BRANDON VALOR BRODT

139 W. Richmond Avenue, #B
Richmond, CA 94801

Pharmacist License No. RPH 43082

Respondents.
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Complainant alleges:

PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Second Amended Accusation and Petition
to Revoke solely in her official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy,
Department of Consumer Affairs.

2. On or about March 7, 2001, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 45225 to Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy and Elaine Chan, Owner (Respondent FFSP). The
Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this
Second Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and will expire on March 1, 2016,
unless renewed.

3. On or about January 2, 2002, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License No. 36761 to Elaine Chan (Respondent Chan). The Pharmacy Technician License was in
full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this Second Amended
Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and will expire on July 31, 2017, unless renewed.

4. On or about March 1, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No.
RPH 43082 to Brandon Valor Brodt (Respondent Brodt). The Pharmacist License was in full
force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this Second Amended Accusation
and Petition to Revoke Probation and will expire on January 31, 2016, unless renewed.

5. On or about October 14, 2010, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No.
RPH 64877 to Thinh Phu Nguyen (Respondent Nguyen). The Pharmacist License was in full
force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this Second Amended Accusation
and Petition to Revoke Probation and will expire on September 30, 2016, unless renewed.

PRIOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION

6. Inadisciplinary action entitled "In the Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifty
Sutter, Brandon Brodt, and Elaine Chan," Case No. 3797, the Board of Pharmacy issued a
Decision and Order, effective June 20, 2013. The Board revoked Respondent FFSP's Pharmacy
Permit. However, the Board stayed the revocation and placed Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy

Permit on probation for five years with certain teims and conditions. The Board revoked
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Respondent Brodt’s Pharmacist License. However, the Board stayed the revocation and placed
Respondent's Pharmacist License on probation for four years with certain terms and conditions.
The Board issued a citation against Respondent Chan. A copy of that Decision and Order is
attached as Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference.

JURISDICTION

7. The Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of Consumer Affairs, brings this
Second Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation under the authority of the
following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless
otherwise indicated.

8.  Code section 4011 provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both the
Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances Act
[Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

9. Code section 4300 states, in part:

“(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked.

“(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose
default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by
any of the following methods:

“(1) Suspending judgment.

“(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

“(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one year.

“(4) Revoking his or her license.

“(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the boarin its

discretion may deem proper.

“(d) The board may initiate disciplinary proceedings to revoke or suspend any
probationary certificate of licensure for any violation of the terms and conditions of
probation. Upon satisfactory completion of probation, the board shall convert the

probationary certificate to a regular certificate, fgee of conditions.”
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10. Code section 4300.1 states:

“The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by
operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement of a
license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not
deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or
action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending or
revoking the license.”

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

11. Code section 4081 states, in part:

“(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous
drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open to inspection by
authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years from the date
of making. A current inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy,
veterinary food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory,
clinic, hospital, institution, or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked
certificate, license, permit, registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with
Section 1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section
16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock of
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices.

“(b) The owner, officer, and partner of a pharmacy, wholesaler, or veterinary food-
animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharmacist-in-charge or
designated representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in
this section.

12. Code section 4105, subdivision (a), states:

“All records or other documentation of the acquisition and disposition of dangerous
drugs and dangerous devices by any entity licensed by the board shall be retained on the

licensed premises in a readily retrievable form.
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13. Code section 4113, subdivision (c), states that the pharmacist-in-charge “shall be
responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining
to the practice of pharmacy.”

14. Code section 4125, subdivision (a), provides:

“Every pharmacy shall establish a quality assurance program that shall, at a
minimum, document medication errors attributable, in whole or in part, to the pharmacy or
its personnel. The purpose of the quality assurance program shall be to assess errors that
occur in the pharmacy in dispensing or furnishing prescription medications so that the
pharmacy may take appropriate action to prevent a recurrence.”

15. Code section 4301, states, in part:

“The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct . . . . Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to,

any of the following:

“(c) Gross negligence.

“() The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the

United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

“(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of
the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including
regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.”

16. Code section 4342 states:

“(a) The board may institute any action or actions as may be provided by law and
that, in its discretion, are necessary, to prevent the sale of pharmaceutical preparations and
drugs that do not conform to the standard and tests as to quality and strength, provided in

the latest edition of the United States Pharmacopé)eia or the National Formulary, or that
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violate any provision of the Sherman Food, Drug and Cosmetic Law (Part 5 (commencing
with Section 109875) of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code).

“(b) Any knowing or willful violation of any regulation adopted pursuant to Section
4006 shall be subject to punishment in the same manner as is provided in Sections 4336 and
4321

17. Health and Safety Code section 11164 states, in part:

“Except as provided in Section 11167, no person shall prescribe a controlled
substance, nor shall any person fill, compound, or dispense a prescription for a controlled
substance, unless it complies with the requirements of this section.

“(a) Each prescription for a controlled substance classified in Schedule II, III, IV,
or V, except as authorized by subdivision (b), shall be made on a controlled substance
prescription form as specified in Section 11162.1 and shall meet the following

requirements:

“(1) The prescription shall be signed and dated by the prescriber in ink . . .”

18. Health and Safety Code section 11165, subdivision (d), states:

“For each prescription for a Schedule II, Schedule 111, or Schedule IV controlled
substance, as defined in the controlled substances schedules in federal law and regulations,
specifically Sections 1308.12, 1308.13, and 1308.14, respectively, of Title 21 of the Code
of Federal Regulations, the dispensing pharmacy, clinic, or other dispenser shall report the
following information to the Department of Justice as soon as reasonably possible, but not
more than seven days after the date a controlled substance is dispensed, in a format
specified by the Department of Justice:

“(1) Full name, address, and, if available, telephone number of the ultimate user or
research subject, or contact information as determined by the Secretary of the United States
Department of Health and Human Services, and the gender, and date of birth of the ultimate

user.
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“(2) The prescriber's category of licensure, license number, national provider
identifier (NPI) number, if applicable, the federal controlled substance registration number,
and the state medical license number of any prescriber using the federal controlled
substance registration number of a government-exempt facility.

“(3) Pharmacy prescription number, license number, NPI number, and federal
controlled substance registration number.

“(4) National Drug Code (NDC) number of the controlled substance dispensed.

“(5) Quantity of the controlled substance dispensed.

“(6) International Statistical Classification of Diseases, 9" revision (ICD-9) or 10th
revision (ICD-10) Code, if available.

“(7) Number of refills ordered.

“(8) Whether the drug was dispensed as a refill of a prescription or as a first-time
request.

“(9) Date of origin of the prescription.

“(10) Date of dispensing of the prescription.

REGULATORY PROVISIONS

19. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711, states, in part:

“(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance
program which documents and assesses medication errors to determine cause and an
appropriate response as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and
prevent errors.

“(b) For purposes of this section, “medication error” means any variation from a
prescription or drug order not authorized by the prescriber, as described in Section 1716.
Medication error, as defined in the section, does not include any variation that is corrected
prior to furnishing the drug to the patient or patient's agent or any variation allowed by law.

“(c)(1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with
written policies and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately retrievable

form. 7
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“(2) When a pharmacist determines that a medication error has occurred, a
pharmacist shall as soon as possible:

“(A) Communicate to the patient or the patient's agent the fact that a medication
error has occurred and the steps required to avoid injury or mitigate the error.

“(B) Communicate to the prescriber the fact that a medication error has occurred.

“(3) The communication requirement in paragraph (2) of this subdivision shall only
apply to medication errors if the drug was administered to or by the patient, or if the
medication error resulted in a clinically significant delay in therapy.

“(4) If a pharmacist is notified of a prescription error by the patient, the patient's
agent, or a prescriber, the pharmacist is not required to communicate with that individual as
required in paragraph (2) of this subdivision.

“(d) Each pharmacy shall use the findings of its quality assurance program to
develop pharmacy systems and workflow processes designed to prevent medication errors.
An investigation of each medication error shall commence as soon as is reasonably
possible, but no later than 2 business days from the date the medication error is discovered.
All medication errors discovered shall be subject to a quality assurance review.

“(e) The primary purpose of the quality assurance review shall be to advance error
prevention by analyzing, individually and collectively, investigative and other pertinent
data collected in response to a medication error to assess the cause and any contributing
factors such as system or process failures. A record of the quality assurance review shall be
immediately retrievable in the pharmacy. The record shall contain at least the following:

“1. the date, location, and participants in the quality assurance review;

“2. the pertinent data and other information relating to the medication error(s)
reviewed and documentation of any patient contact required by subdivision (c);

“3. the findings and determinations generated by the quality assurance review; and,

“4. recommend changes to pharmacy policy, procedure, systems, or processes, if
any.
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“The pharmacy shall inform pharmacy personnel of changes to pharmacy policy,
procedure, systems, or processes made as a result of recommendations generated in the
quality assurance program.

“(f) The record of the quality assurance review, as provided in subdivision (e) shall
be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy for at least one year from the date the record
was created.

“(g) The pharmacy's compliance with this section will be considered by the board
as a mitigating factor in the investigation and evaluation of a medication error.”

20. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1714, states, in part:

“(b) Each pharmacy licensed by the board shall maintain its facilities, space,
fixtures, and equipment so that drugs are safely and properly prepared, maintained, secured
and distributed. The pharmacy shall be of sufficient size and unobstructed area to
accommodate the safe practice of pharmacy.

“(c) The pharmacy and fixtures and equipment shall be maintained in a clean and
orderly condition. The pharmacy shall be dry, well-ventilated, free from rodents and
insects, and properly lighted. The pharmacy shall be equipped with a sink with hot and cold
running water for pharmaceutical purposes.”

21. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1715, states, in part:

“(a) The pharmacist-in-charge of each pharmacy as defined under section 4029 or
section 4037 of the Business and Professions Code shall complete a self-assessment of the
pharmacy's compliance with federal and state pharmacy law. The assessment shall be
performed before July 1 of every odd-numbered year. The primary purpose of the self-
assessment is to promote compliance through self-examination and education.

“(b) In addition to the self-assessment required in subdivision (a) of this section, the
pharmacist-in-charge shall complete a self-assessment within 30 days whenever:

“(1) A new pharmacy permit has been issued, or

“(2) There is a change in the pharmacist-in-charge, and he or she becomes the new

pharmacist-in-charge of a pharmacy.” 9
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22. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716, states, in part:

“Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription except upon
the prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section
4073 of the Business and Professions Code.”

23. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718, states:

“*Current Inventory’ as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and
Professions Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all dangerous
drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in Sections 4081 and 4332.

“The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 1304
shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the date of the
inventory.”

24. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2, states, in part:

“(h) Every compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date representing
the date beyond which, in the professional judgment of the pharmacist performing or
supervising the compounding, it should not be used. This "beyond use date" of the
compounded drug product shall not exceed 180 days from preparation or the shortest
expiration date of any component in the compounded drug product, unless a longer date is
supported by stability studies of finished drugs or compounded drug products using the
same components and packaging. Shorter dating than set forth in this subsection may be

used if it is deemed appropriate in the professional judgment of the responsible pharmacist.

“(j) Prior to allowing any drug product to be compounded in a pharmacy, the
pharmacist-in-charge shall complete a self-assessment for compounding pharmacies
developed by the board. (Incorporated by reference is “Community Pharmacy & Hospital
Outpatient Pharmacy Compounding Self-Assessment” Form 17M-39 Rev. 02/12.) That
form contains a first section applicable to all compounding, and a second section applicable
to sterile injectable compounding. The first section must be completed by the pharmacist-

in-charge before any compounding is performedl'Bq the pharmacy. The second section must
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be completed by the pharmacist-in-charge before any sterile injectable compounding is
performed in the pharmacy. The applicable sections of the self-assessment shall
subsequently be completed before July 1 of each odd-numbered year, within 30 days of the
start of a new pharmacist-in-charge, and within 30 days of the issuance of a new pharmacy
license. The primary purpose of the self-assessment is to promote compliance through self-
examination and education.”

25. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3, subdivision (a), states, in
part:

“For each compounded drug product, the pharmacy records shall include:

“(6) The manufacturer, expiration date and lot number of each component. If the
manufacturer name is demonstrably unavailable, the name of the supplier may be
substituted.”

26. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1774, subdivision (b), states:

“When the circumstances of the case so require, the Board may impose conditions
of probation in addition to those enumerated herein by the terms of its decision in an
administrative case or by stipulation of the parties.”

27. Federal Code of Regulations, title 21, section 1304.04, states, in part:

“(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (a)(1) and (a)(2) of this section, every
inventory and other records required to be kept under this part must be kept by the
registrant and be available, for at least 2 years from the date of such inventory or records,

for inspection and copying by authorized employees of the Administration.

“(h) Each registered pharmacy shall maintain the inventories and records of
controlled substances as follows:
“(1) Inventories and records of all controlled substances listed in Schedule I and II

shall be maintained separately from all other records of the pharmacy.
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“(2) Paper prescriptions for Schedule II controlled substances shall be maintained
at the registered location in a separate prescription file.

“(3) Inventories and records of Schedules III, IV, and V controlled substances
shall be maintained either separately from all other records of the pharmacy or in such
form that the information required is readily retrievable from ordinary business records of
the pharmacy.

“(4) Paper prescriptions for Schedules 111, IV, and V controlled substances shall
be maintained at the registered location either in a separate prescription file for Schedules
II1, IV, and V controlled substances only or in such form that they are readily retrievable
from the other prescription records of the pharmacy. Prescriptions will be deemed readily
retrievable if, at the time they are initially filed, the face of the prescription is stamped in
red ink in the lower right corner with the letter "C" no less than 1 inch high and filed
either in the prescription file for controlled substances listed in Schedules I and II or in the
usual consecutively numbered prescription file for noncontrolled substances. However, if
a pharmacy employs a computer application for prescriptions that permits identification
by prescription number and retrieval of original documents by prescriber name, patient's
name, drug dispensed, and date filled, then the requirement to mark the hard copy
prescription with a red "C" is waived.

“(5) Records of electronic prescriptions for controlled substances shall be
maintained in an application that meets the requirements of part 1311 of this chapter. The
computers on which the records are maintained may be located at another location, but the
records must be readily retrievable at the registered location if requested by the
Administration or other law enforcement agent. The electronic application must be
capable of printing out or transferring the records in a format that is readily
understandable to an Administration or other law enforcement agent at the registered
location. Electronic copies of prescription records must be sortable by prescriber name,
patient name, drug dispensed, and date filled.”
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COST RECOVERY

28. Code section 125.3 states, in part, that the Board may request the administrative law
judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of the licensing act to
pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the case.

JUNE 11, 2012, INSPECTION

29. From on or about November 4, 2004, to January 1, 2013, Respondent Brodt was the
Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) at Respondent FFSP.

30. On February 3, 2012, Respondent Brodt and Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription
number 6431311 to Patient A' for orphenadrine 100 mg extended release instead of orphenadrine
100 mg immediate release as prescribed.

31.  On or about June 11, 2012, a Board investigator conducted an inspection at
Respondent FFSP after the Board received an online complaint from Patient A that the pharmacy
charged patient A for unwanted medication and dispensed orphenadrine 100 mg that was not in
accordance with a physician’s written prescription.

32. During the inspection, the investigator observed the following:

a.  The premises was cluttered and disorganized despite written notice in 2009 and 2010.

b.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt did not conduct a quality assurance report
and review of the February 3, 2012, medication error for prescription number 6431311 for
orphenadrine 100 mg.

c.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt could not provide a dispensing record for
prescription number 6431311.

d.  Multiple expired products were on Respondent FFSP’s pharmacy shelves including,
but not limited to, the following: glycerin (January 2006), alcohol (June 2009), ether (December
1992), water (March 2012), hydrogen peroxide (July 2004), bismuth subgallate (November 30,
2010), and sodium borate (March 31, 2010).

! Patients are identified by number to protect their privacy.
13
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e.  When Patient A complained to Respondent Chan about the February 3, 2012,
medication error for prescription number 6431311 for orphenadrine. Respondent Chan did not
acknowledge the error, and, instead, insisted that Respondent FFSP dispensed the prescription
correctly.

33.  On or about August 27, 2012, a Board investigator issued notices of noncompliance
to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt.

DRUGS

34. Fortesta is the brand name for testosterone gel. It is a Schedule III controlled
substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision ()(30), and a dangerous
drug pursuant to Code section 4022.

35. Orphenadrine is the generic name for trade drug Norflex. It is a dangerous drug
pursuant to Code section 4022.

36. Valacyclovir is the generic name for Valtrex and is a dangerous drug pursuant to
Code section 4022.

ACCUSATION
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises)
37. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (c).) During a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized. The underlying facts are set forth
more particularly in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Variation from Prescription)
38. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for deviating from the
requirements of a prescription. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §
1716.) On or about February 3, 2012, Respondent FFSP dispensed orphenadrine 100 mg

14
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extended release instead of orphenadrine 100 mg immediate release, as prescribed. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)

39. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a medication
error quality assurance review report in the pharmacy for the present year. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §1711.) On or about February 3, 2012,
Respondent FFSP committed a medication error regarding prescription number 6431311 for
orphenadrine 100 mg. Respondent FFSP was required to prepare a report within two days of the
date of the discovery of the error. However, during a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent FFSP did not have available a quality assurance review report on file and
immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29
through 32, above.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Dangerous Drugs)

40. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to maintain records of
dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j) and (o) and 4081, subd. (a).) During a
Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012, Respondent FFSP did not have any dispensing
records for prescription number 6431311 for orphenadrine available for Board review. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expired Drugs in Inventory)

41. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for maintaining expired drugs in its
inventory. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subd. (0), and 4342, subd. (a).) During a Board
inspection on or about June 11, 2012, a board investigator observed that Respondent FFSP
maintained several expired pharmacy products. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above.
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises)
42. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (c).) During a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent Brodt was the PIC and Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized.
The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Variation from Prescription)

43. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for deviating from the
requirements of a prescription. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs.,
tit. 16, § 1716.) On or about February 3, 2012, Respondent Brodt dispensed orphenadrine 100 mg
extended release instead of orphenadrine 100 mg immediate release, as prescribed. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)

44. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a medication
error quality assurance review report in the pharmacy for the present year. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §1711.) On or about February 3, 2012,
Respondent Brodt committed a medication error regarding prescription number 6431311 for
orphenadrine 100 mg. Respondent Brodt was required to prepare a report within two days of the
date of the discovery of the error. However, during a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent Brodt did not have available a quality assurance review report on file and
immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29
through 32, above.
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NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Dangerous Drugs)

45. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to maintain records of
dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and 4081, subd. (a).) During a
Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012, Respondent Brodt did not have any dispensing
records for prescription number 6431311 for orphenadrine available for Board review. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expired Drugs in Inventory)

46. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for maintaining expired drugs in
its inventory. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subd. (0), and 4342, subd. (a).) During a Board
inspection on or about June 11, 2012, a board investigator observed that Respondent Brodt
maintained several expired pharmacy products. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 29, 31 and 32, above.

JUNE 26, 2013, INSPECTION

47. From on or about January 1, 2013, to present, Respondent Nguyen was the PIC at
FFSP.

48.  On or about January 24, 2013, Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen dispensed
prescription number 4149633 for Patient B for a testosterone gel preparation and wrote an
expiration date of July 2013. However, two ingredients expired on June 2013 and one ingredient
did not have a documented expiration date.

49.  On or about March 27, 2013, Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription number
4150016 for Patient B for Fortesta with directions to use four pumps a day, instead of the eight
pumps a day as prescribed.

50. On or about April 19, 2013, Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription number
6143144 for Patient B for valacyclovir 1 gram once a day, instead of the prescribed 500 mg twice

a day.
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51. On or about May 13, 2013, Patient B informed Respondent FFSP of the medication
errors.

52.  On or about June 26, 2013, a Board investigator conducted an inspection at
Respondent FFSP after the Board received an online complaint that the pharmacy dispensed
medications that were not in accordance with a physician’s written prescriptions.

53. During the inspection, the investigator observed the following:

a.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide a compounding
log for prescription number 4146533 for Patient B for testosterone.

b.  Respondent Nguyen admitted that he assigned an expiration date to the compounded
testosterone for prescription 4149633 for Patient B that was beyond the expiration date of
multiple ingredients.

c. On or about December 2 and 27, 2011, January 29, February 27, March 22, and April
17,2012, Respondent FFSP dispensed testosterone gel to Patient B instead of testosterone
powder as ordered by the original prescription, dated November 7, 2011. Respondent FFSP also
dispensed the compound with incorrect directions for use, stating to use it once a day instead of
twice a day. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide any
documentation showing a change in dosage, form, or directions from the prescribing physician.

d.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen could not provide to the Board a current
biennial controlled substance inventory and a record of a biennial inventory for any time period.

e.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not conduct a self-assessment of the
pharmacy’s compliance with federal and state pharmacy law within 30 days of January 1, 2013,
when Respondent Nguyen became the new PIC. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen
could not provide to the Board a copy of a completed current self-assessment that should have
been conducted in July 2011.

f. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not conduct a self-assessment of the
pharmacy’s compliance with compounding laws within 30 days of January 1, 2013, when

Respondent Nguyen became the new PIC. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen could not
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provide to the Board a copy of a completed current compounding self-assessment that should
have been conducted in July 2011.

g.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen Respondent FFSP and Respondent
Nguyen did not conduct a quality assurance review report by May 15, 2013, within two business
days of the date that they discovered that they dispensed prescription number 4150016 to Patient
B for Fortesta with incorrect directions. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable
to provide to the Board a copy of a quality assurance review report.

h.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide an original copy to
the Board of prescription number 6423645 to Patient B for valacyclovir 500 mg with directions to
take one tablet twice a day.

1. Respondent FFSP’s premises was cluttered and disorganized despite written notice in
2009, 2010, and 2012.

J- A Notice of Probation was not posted at Respondent FFSP as required by Condition
Number 11, of the Decision and Order In the Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifty Sutter,
Case No. 3797.

54.  On or about June 26, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of noncompliance to
Respondent FFSP. The Board issued a citation against Respondent Nguyen, as set forth more
particularly in paragraph 87, below.

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Provide Controlled Substance Inventories)

55.  Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not providing controlled
substance inventories during an inspection. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1718; and 21 C.F.R. § 1304.04.) During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have available a current biennial inventory and there
was no record of a biennial inventory for any time period. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 47, 52, and 53, above.
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TWELFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Prepare Controlled Substance Inventory Self-Assessment)

56. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not providing controlled
substance inventory self-assessments during an inspection. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j)
and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1715, subds. (a) and (b)(2).) By January 31 and July 1, 2013,
Respondent FFSP was required to conduct controlled substance inventory self-assessments.
During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have these self-
assessments available for Board review. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in
paragraphs 37, 52, and 53, above.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Prepare Compounding Self-Assessment)

57. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not providing copies of
compounding self-assessments during an inspection. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1735.2, subd. (j).) By January 31, 2013 and July 1, 2013, Respondent FFSP
was required to conduct compounding self-assessments. During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have these assessments available for Board review. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 37, 52, and 53, above.

FOURTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises —Safe Practice of Pharmacy)
58. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (b).) During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013,
Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized. The underlying facts are set forth
more particularly in paragraphs 47, and 52 through 54, above.
FIFTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)
59. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a quality

assurance review report in the pharmacy for the%esent year. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds.
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(j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §1711.) On May 13, 2013, Respondent FFSP discovered that
it made a medication error regarding prescription number 4150016 for Fortesta. Respondent
FFSP was required to investigate and prepare a report. During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have available a quality assurance review report on file
and immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
47 though 54, above.

SIXTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Original Prescription for Dangerous Drug)

60. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to retain original
documentation for the disposition of dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j)
and (o) and 4105, subd. (a).) During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013, Respondent
FFSP did not have available in readily retrievable form the original prescription number 6423645
for valacyclovir. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 47 through
54, above.

SEVENTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expiration Date Error)
61. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for assigning an expiration date to
a compounded drug product that was beyond the use date. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subds.
(j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1735.2, subd. (h).) On or about January 24, 2013,
Respondent FFSP assigned an expiration date of July 2013 for a testosterone gel when the
shortest expiration date of several of the gel’s components was June 2013. The underlying facts

are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 47 through 54, above.

EIGHTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Labeling Error)
62. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for dispensing medication with
instructions that deviated from the prescription as written by a physician. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1716.) Respondent FFSP dispensed

prescription number 4146533 as a testosterone ngIl to be used once a day instead of the
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testosterone powder to be used twice a day. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly
in paragraphs 47 through 54, above.
OCTOBER 8. 2013, INSPECTION

63.  On or about October 8, 2013, Board investigators conducted an inspection at
Respondent FFSP. Board investigators requested copies of transmission of controlled substance
dispensing data to Controlled Substance Utilization Review and Evaluation System (CURES) for
2012 through 2013. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide proof of
transmission of CURES reports.

64. On October 24, 2013, a Board investigator discovered that Respondent FFSP,
Respondent Brodt, and Respondent Nguyen submitted controlled substance dispensing data to
CURES on February 27, 2012, April 6, 2012, January 21, 2013, July 10, 2013, August 21, 22,
and 29, 2013, and October 15, 22, and 23, 2013, instead of on a weekly basis as required.
Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not file a report for February 2013.

65. On or about November 5, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of
noncompliance to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen.

66. On or about November 12, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of

noncompliance to Respondent Brodt.

NINETEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

67. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During a Board inspection on or about October 8, 2013, Respondent
FFSP did not have available controlled substance dispensing data for Board review. Respondent
FFSP failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES within seven days after the date of
dispensing controlled substances, as required. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly
in paragraphs 63 through 65, above.
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TWENTIETH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

68. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) While acting as PIC, Respondent Brodt failed to submit controlled
substance data to CURES within seven days after the dispensing controlled substances, as
required. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 63, 64, and 66, above.

TWENTY FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

69. Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During a Board inspection on or about October 8, 2013, Respondent
Nguyen did not have available controlled substance dispensing data for Board review. While
acting as PCI, Respondent Nguyen failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES within
seven days after dispensing controlled substances, as required. The underlying facts are set forth
more particularly in paragraphs 63, 64, and 66, above.

JANUARY 21, 2015 INSPECTION

70.  On or about November 25, 2014, the Board discovered that Respondent FFSP had
failed to include all prescriptions in its CURES report and was not transmitting data consistently
on a weekly basis as required. On or about January 21, 2015, a Board investigator conducted an
inspection at Respondent FFSP. The Board investigator asked Respondent’s staff to logon to the
CURES Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP) to confirm that randomly selected
prescription documents for controlled substances that were dispensed from December 15, 2014 to
January 12, 2015 were documented in the CURES database. Board investigators found that, of
fifteen selected prescriptions, information for ten were not in the CURES PDMP. Ultimately, the
Board investigator found that, from December 2013 to September 2014, Respondent FFSP failed
to transmit controlled substance data consistently on a weekly basis, and had failed to transmit

data for controlled substances dispensed on Decggnber 22,23,24,30and 31, 2014. When asked,
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Respondent Nguyen stated that Respondent Chan was responsible for submitted the CURES data
at Respondent FFSP.
71.  On or about January 21, 2015, a Board investigator issued a notice of noncompliance
to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen.
TWENTY SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

72. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about January 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that Respondent FFSP failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES
within seven days after the date of dispensing controlled substances as required. The underlying
facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.

TWENTY THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Gross Negligence)
73.  Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus. &
Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (c).) The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
70 through 71, above.
TWENTY FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

74. Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about January 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that, while acting as PCI, Respondent Nguyen failed to submit controlled
substance data to CURES within seven days after dispensing controlled substances, as required.
The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.
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TWENTY FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Gross Negligence)
75. Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus. &
Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (c).) The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
70 through 71, above.
TWENTY SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

76. Respondent Chan’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about January 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that, while acting as the individual licensed owner of Respondent FFSP,
Respondent FFSP failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES within seven days after
dispensing controlled substances, as required. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly
in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.

TWENTY SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Gross Negligence)
77. Respondent Chan’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus. & Prof.
Code, § 4301, subd. (c).) The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70

through 71, above.

PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
78.  Grounds exist for revoking the probation and re-imposing the order of revocation of
Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy Permit.
79. This Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before the Board under the probation
terms and conditions of the Decision and Order for In the Matter of the Accusation against Four

Fifty Sutter, Brandon Brodt, and Elaine Chan, Case No. 3797.
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80. At all times after the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 1 of
the Disciplinary Order stated, in part, that: “Respondent shall obey all federal and state and
regulations.”

81. At all times after the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 11 of
the Disciplinary Order stated that:

“Respondent FFSP's owner shall prominently post a probation notice provided by
the board in a place conspicuous and readable to the public. The probation notice shall
remain posted during the entire period of probation.

“Respondent FFSP's owner shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or
make any statement which is intended to mislead or is likely to have the effect of
misleading any patient, customer, member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature
of and reason for the probation of the licensed entity.

“Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of probation.”

82. At all times after the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 12 of
the Disciplinary Order stated that:

“If Respondent FFSP has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent FFSP's license, and probation
shall be automatically extended until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the
board has taken other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a
violation of probation, to terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

“If Respondent FFSP violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving
Respondent FFSP's owner notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and
carry out the disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not
required for those provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic
termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or
an accusation is filed against Respondent FFSP during probation, the Board shall have
continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically extended until

the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.”
p p
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FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Obey All Laws)
83. Respondent FFSP’s probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 1, referenced above, by failing to comply with all laws and regulations,
as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 29 through 77, above.

SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Post Notice of Probation)
84. Respondent FFSP’s probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 11, referenced above, by failing to post the Notice of Probation, as
more particularly set forth in paragraphs 52 and 53, above.

THIRD CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Comply with Terms of Probation)
85.  Respondent FFSP’s probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 12, referenced above, by failing to comply with any term or condition
of probation, as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 29 through 77, above.

DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

86. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent FFSP,
Complainant alleges that on or about June 15, 2007, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 06 33185. The Board ordered a $2,500 fine against Respondent FFSP. That Citation
is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

87. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent FFSP,
Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 08 38139. The Board and ordered a $5,000.00 fine against Respondent FFSP. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

88. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Chan,
Complainant alleges that on or about May 21, 2013, in a disciplinary action entitled "/n the
Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifty Sutter, Brandon Brodt, and Elaine Chan," Case No.

3797, the Board issued a citation against Resp01}d75nt Chan for subversion. The Board ordered a
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$5,000.00 fine against Respondent Chan. That Citation is now final and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth.

89. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,
Complainant alleges that on or about June 15, 2007, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 06 33851. The Board ordered a $1,000.00 fine against Respondent Brodt. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

90. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,
Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 09 40780. The Board ordered a $3,000.00 fine against Respondent Brodt. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

91. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Nguyen,
Complainant alleges that on or about March 13, 2014, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 2013 58775. The Board ordered a $3,875.00 fine against Respondent Nguyen. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters alleged in this
Second Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, and that following the hearing,
the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking the probation that was granted by the Board of Pharmacy in Case No. 3797
and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking Pharmacy Permit No. PHY
45225 issued to Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy and Elaine Chan, Owner;

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 45225 issued to Four Fifty
Sutter Pharmacy and Elaine Chan, Owner;

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician License Number 367361 issued to
Elaine Chan;

4.  Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 43082 issued to Brandon

Valor Brodt;
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5. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 64877 issued to Thinh Phu
Nguyen;

6.  Ordering Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy, Elaine Chan, Brandon Valor Brodt, and Thinh
Phu Nguyen to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3; and

7. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

A .
DATED: | Z [2. /15 L}W AA_C~——
, ’ “WIRGIN ROLD ) \
Executive Qffiger
Board of Phartmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

SF2013902016/ 90590323.docx
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Exhibit A

Decision and Order

Board of Pharmacy Case No. 3797
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
DIANN SOKOLOFF
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
CARTER OTT
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 169423
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O. Box 70550
Qakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-22219
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5000

FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY and | OAH No. 2015050642
ELAINE CHAN, Owner

450 Sutter Street, #710, 7th Floor
San Francisco, California 94108
FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION AND
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 45225 PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION

ELAINE CHAN
450 Sutter Street, Ste. 713, 7" Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH
36761

THINH PHU NGUYEN
106 Summerrain Drive
South San Francisco, CA 94080 -

Pharmacist License No, RPH 04877
BRANDON VALOR BRODT

139 W. Richmond Avenue, #B
Richmond, CA 94801

Pharmacist License No. RPH 43082

Respondents,
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Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer A ffairs,

2. Onor about March 7, 2001, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 45225 to Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy and Elaihe Chan, Owner (Respondent FFSP), The
Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this
Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and will expire on July 31, 2015, unless renewed.

3. Onor about January 2, 2002, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License No, 36761 to Elaine Chan (Respondent Chan). The Pharmacy Technician License was in
full force and effect at all tim'es relevant to the charges brought in this Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation and will expire on July 31, 2015, unless renewed. |

4. On or about March 1, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No,
RPH 43082 to Brandon Valor Brodt (Respondent Brodt). The Pharmacist License was in full
force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought in this Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation and will expire on January 31, 2016, unless renewed.

5. On or about October 14, 2010, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License No.
RPH 64877 to Thinh Phu Nguyen (Respondent Nguyen). The Pharmacist License was in full
force and effect at all times relevant to the charges broﬁ ght in this Accusation and Petition to
Revoke Probation and will expire on September 30, 2014, unless renewed.

PRIOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION

6.  Inadisciplinary action entitled "In the Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifiy
Sutter, Brandon Brodt, and Elaine Chan," Case No. 3797, the Board of Pharmacy issued a
Decision and Order, effective June 20, 2013, The Board revoked Respondent FFSP's Pharmacy
Permit. However, the Board stayed the revocation and placed Respondcnt FFSP’s Pharmacy
Permit on probation for five years with certain terms and conditions. The Board revoked
Respondent Brodt’s Pharmacist License. However, the Board stayed the revocation and placed

Respondent's Pharmacist License on probation f%r four years with certain terms and conditions.
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The Board issued a citation against Respondent Chan. A copy of that Decision and Order is
attached as exhibit A and is incorporated by reference.

JURISDICTION

7.  The Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of Consumer Affairs, brings.this
Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation under the authority of the following laws., All
section references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise indicated.

8.  Code section 4011 provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both the
Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof, Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances Act
[Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.).

9. Code section 4300 states, in part:

“(a) Every license issued may be suspended or revoked,

“(b) The board shall discipline the holder of any license issued by the board, whose
default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by
any of the following methods:

“(1) Suspending judgment,

“(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

“(3) Suspending his ot her right to practice for a period not exceeding one year.

“(4) Revoking his or her license.

“(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the boarin its

discretion may deem proper. -

“(d) The board may initiate disciplinary proceedings to revoke or suspend any
probationary certificate of licensure for any violation of the terms and conditions of
probation. Upon satisfactory completion of probation, the board shall convert the
probationary certificate to a regular certificate, free of conditions.”

10. Code section 4300.1 states:

“The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by

operation of law or by order or decision of the b%ard or a court of law, the placement of a
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license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not
deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or
action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending or
revoking the license.”

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

11. Code section 4081 states, in part;

“(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous
drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open to inspection by
authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three years from the date
of making. A current inventory shall be kept by every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy,
veterinary food-animal drug retailer, physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory,
clinic, hospital, institution, or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked
certificate, license, permit, registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with
Section 1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 {(commencing with Section
16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock of
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices.

“(b) The owner, officer, and partner of a pharmacy, wholesaler, or veterinary food-
animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharmacist-in-charge or
designated representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and inventory described in
this section.

12. Code section 4105, subdivision (a), states:

“All records or other documentation of the acquisition and disposition of dangerous
drugs and dangerous devices by any entity licensed by the board shall be retained on the
licensed premises in a readily retrievable form.

13. Code section 4113, subdivision {¢), states that the pharmacist-in-charge “shall be
responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining
to the practice of pharmacy.”

i 4
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14, Code section 4125, subdivision (a), provides:

“Every pharmacy shall establish a quality assurance program that shall, at a
minimum, document medication errors attributable, in whole or in part, to the pharmacy or
its .personnel. The purpose of the quality assurance program shall be to assess errors that
occur in the pharmacy in dispensing or furnishing prescription medications so that the
pharmacy may take appropriate action to prevent a recurrence.”

15. Code section 4301, states, in part:

“The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct . . .. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to,

any of the following:
“(c) Gross negligence.

“(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the

United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

*(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the violation of or conspiring to Viol;ate any provision or term of this chapter or of
the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including
regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.”

16. Code section 4342 states:

“(a) The board may institute any action or actions as may be provided by law and
that, in its discretion, are necessary, to prevent the sale of pharmaceutical preparations and
drugs that do not conform to the standard and tests as to quality and strength, provided in
the latest edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia or the National Formulary, or that
violate any provision of the Sherman Food, Drug and Cosmetic Law (Part 5 (commencing

with Section 109875) of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code).

5
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“(b) Any knowing or willtul violation of any regulation adopted pursuant to Section
4006 shall be subject to punishment in the same manner as is provided in Sections 4336 and
4321

17. Health and Safety Code section 11164 states, in part:

“Except as provided in Section 11167, no person shall prescribe a controlled
substance, nor shall any person fill, compound, or dispense a prescription for a controlled
substance, unless it complies with the requirements of this section.

“(a) Each prescription for a controlled substance classified in Schedule II, 111, TV,
or V, except as authorized by subdivision (b), shall be made on a controlled substance
prescription form as specified in Section 11162.1 and shall meet fhe following

requirements;

“(1) The prescription shall be signed and dated by the prescriber in ink . , .*

18. Health and Safety Code section 11165, subdivision (d), states:

“For each prescription for a Schedule II, Schedule II1, or Schedule TV controlled
substance, as defined in the controlled substances schedules in federal law and regulations,
specifically Sections 1308.12, 1308.13, and 1308.14, respectively, of Title 21 of the Code
of Federal Regulations, the dispensing pharmacy, clinic, or other dispenser shall report the
following information to the Department of Justice as soon as reasonably possible, but not
more than seven days after the date a controlled substance is dispensed, in a format
specified by the Department of Justice:

“(1) Full name, address, and, if available, telephone number of the ultimate user or
research subject, or contact information as determined by the Secretary of the United States
Department of Health and Human Services,'and the gender, and date of birth of the ultimate
user.

“(2) The prescriber's category of licensure, license number, national provider

identifier (NPI) number, if applicable, the federal controlled substance registration number,

6
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and the state medical license number of any prescriber using the federal controlled
substance registration number of a government-exempt fability.

‘“(3) Pharmacy prescription number, license number, NPI number, and federal
controlled substance registration number.

“(4) National Drug Code (NDC) number of the controlled substance dispensed.

“(5) Quantity of the controlled substance dispensed.

“(6.) International Statistical Classification of Diséases, 9" revision (ICD-9) or 10th
revision (ICD-10} Code, if available.

“(7) Number of refills ordered.

“(8) Whether the drug was dispensed as a refill of a prescription or as a first-time
request,

“(9) Date of origin of the prescription.

“(10) Date of dispensing of the prescription,

REGULATORY PROVISIONS

19. California Code of Regulations, fitle 16, section 1711, states, in part:

“(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance
program which documents and assesses medication errors to determine cause and an
appropriate response as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and
prevent errors.

“(b) For purposes of this section, “medication error” means any variation from a
prescription or drug order not authorized by the prescriber, as described in Section 1716.
Medication error, as defined in ther section, does not include any variation that is corrected
priot to furnishing the drug to the patient or patient's agent or any variation allowed by law.

“(¢)(1) Each quality assurance program shall be managed in accordance with
written policies and procedures maintained in the pharmacy in an immediately retrievable
form,

1
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“(2) When a pharmacist determines that a medication error has occurred, a
pharmacist shall as soon as possible:

“(A) Communicate to the patient or the patient's agent the fact that a medication
error has occurred and the steps required to avoid injury or mitigate the error,

“(B) Communicate to the prescriber the fact that a medication error has occurred.

“(3) The communication requirement in paragraph (2) of this subdivision shall only
apply to medication errors if the drug was administered to or by the patient, or if the
medication error resulted in a clinically significant delay in therapy.

“(4) If a pharmacist is notified of a prescription error by the patient, the patient's
agent, or a prescriber, the pharmacist is not required to communicate with that individual as
required in paragraph (2) of this subdivision.

“(d) Each pharmacy shall use the findings. of its quality assurance program to
develop pharmacy systems and workflow processes designed to prevent medication errors.
An investigation of each medication error shall commence as soon as is reasonably
possible, but no later than 2 business days from the date the medication error is discovered.
All medication errors discovered shall be subject to a quality assurance review.

“(¢) The primary purpose of the quality assurance review shall be to advance error
prevention by analyzing, individually and collectively, investigative and other pertinent
data collected in response to a medication error to assess the cause and any contributing
factors such as system or process failures. A record of the quality assurance review shall be
immediately retrievable in the pharmacy. The record shall contain at least the following:

“1. the date, location, and participants in the quality assurance review;

“2. the pertinent data and other information relating to the medication error(s)
reviewed and documentation of any patient contact required by subdivision {c);

“3. the findings and determinations generated by the quality assurance review; and,

“4, recommend changes to pharmacy policy, procedure, systems, or processes, if

any.

8
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“The pharmacy shall inform pharmacy personnel of changes to pharmacy policy,
procedure, systems, or processes made as a result of recommendations generated in the
quality assurance program.

“(f) The record of the quality assurance review, as provided in subdivision (e} shall
be immediately retrievable in the pharmacy for at least one year from the date the record
was created.

“(g) The pharmacy's compliance with this section will be considered by the board
as a mitigating factor in the investigation and evaluation of a medication error.”

20. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1714, states, in part:

“(b) Each pharmacy licensed by the board shall maintain its facilities, space,
fixtures, and equipment so that drugs are safely and properly prepared, maintained, secured
and distributed. The pharmacy shall be of sufficient size and unobstructed area to
accommodate the safe practice of pharmacy,

“(¢) The pharmacy and fixtures and equipment shall be maintained in a clean and
orderly condition. The pharmacy shall be dry, well-ventilated, free from rodents and
insects, and properly lighted. The pharmacy shall be equipped with a sink with hot and cold
running water for pharmaceutical purposes.”

21. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1715, states, in part:

“(a) The pharmacist-in-charge of each pharmacy as defined under section 4029 or
section 4037 of the Business and Professions Code shall complete a self-assessment of the
pharmacy's compliance with federal and state pharmacy law. The assessment shall be
performed before July | of every odd-numbered year, The primary purpose of the self-
assessment is to promote compliance through self-examination and education.

“(b) In addition to the self-assessment required in subdivision (a) of this section, the
pharmacist-in-charge shall complete a self-assessment within 30 days whenever:

“(1) A new pharmacy permit has been issued, or

“(2) There is a change in the pharmacist-in-charge, and he or she becomes the new

pharmacist-in-charge of a pharmacy.” 9
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22. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716, states, in part;

“Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription except upon
the prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section
4073 of the Business and Professions Code.”

23, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718, states:

“*Current Inventory’ as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and
Professions Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all dangerous
drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in Sections 4081 and 4332.

“The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 1304
shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the date of the
inventory,”

24. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2, states, in part:

“(h) Every compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date representing
the date beyond which, in the professional judgment of the pharmacist performing or
supervising the compounding, it should not be used. This "beyond use date” of the
compounded drug product shall not exceed 180 days from preparation or the shortest
expiration date of any component in the compounded drug product, unless a longer date is
supported by stability studies of finished drugs or compounded drug products using the
same components and packaging. Shorter dating than set forth in this subsection may be

used if it is deemed appropriate in the professional judgment of the responsible pharmacist.

“(G) Prior to allowing any drug product to be compoundeéd in a pharmacy, the
pharmacist-in-charge shall complete a self-assessment for compounding pharmacies
developed by the board. (Incorporated by reference is “Community Pharmacy & Hospital
Quipatient Pharmacy Compounding Self-Assessment” Form 17M-39 Rey. 02/12.) That
form contains a first section applicable to all compounding, and a second section applicable
to sterile injectable compounding. The first section must be completed by the pharmacist-

in-charge before any compounding is pcrformedlBl the pharmacy. The second section must
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be completed by the phgrmacist-in—charge before any sterile injectable compounding is
performed in the pharmacy. The applicable sections of the self-assessment shall
subsequently be completed before July 1 of each odd-numbered year, within 30 days of the
start of a new pharmacist-in-charge, and within 30 days of the issuance of a new pharmacy
license. The primary purpose of the self-assessment is to promote compliance through self-
examination and education.”

25. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3, subdivision (a), states, in
part:

“For each compounded drug product, the pharmacy records shall include:

“(6) The manufacturer, expiration date and lot number of each component. If the
manufacturer name is demonstrably unavailable, the name of the supplier may be
substituted.”

26. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1774, subdivision (b), states:

“When the circumstances of the case so require, the Board may impose conditions
of probation in addition to those enumerated herein by the terms of its decision in an
administrative case or by stipulation of the parties.””

27. Federal Code of Regulations, title 21, section 1304.04, states, in part;

“(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (a)(1) and (a)(2) of this section, every
inventory and other records required to be kept under this part must be kept by the
registrant and be available, for at least 2 years from the date of such inventory or records,

for inspection and copying by authorized employees of the Administration.

“(h) Each registered pharmacy shall maintain the inventories and records of
controlled substances as follows:

“(1) Inventories and records of all controlled substances listed in Schedule I and I1
shall be maintained separately from all other records of the pharmacy.

i 11
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“(2) Paper prescriptions for Schedule IT controlled substances shall be maintained
at the registered location in a separate prescription file,

“(3) Inventories and records of Schedules III, IV, and V controlled substances
shall be maintained either separately from all other records of the pharmacy or in such
form that the information required is readily retrievable from ordinary business records of
the pharmacy.

“(4) Paper prescriptions for Schedules 111, 1V, and V controlled substances shall
be maintained at the registered location either in a separate prescription file for Schedules
111, TV, and V controlled substances only or in such form that they are readily retrievable
from the other prescription records of the pharmacy. Prescriptions will be deemed readily
retrievable if, at the time they are initially filed, the face of the prescription is stamped in
red ink in the lower right corner with the letter "C" no less than 1 inch high and filed
either in the prescription file for controlled substances listed in Schedules I and II or in the
usual consecutively numbered prescription file for noncontrolled substances, However, if
a pharmacy employs a computer application for prescriptions that permits identification
by prescription number and retrieval of original documents by prescriber name, patient's
name, drug dispensed, and date filled, then the requirement to mark the hard copy
prescription with a red "C" is waived.

“(5) Records of electronic prescriptions for controlled substances shall be
maintained in an application that meets the requirements of part 1311 of this chapter. The
computers on which the records are maintained may be located at another location, but the
records must be readily retrievable at the registered location if requested by the
Administration or other law enforcement agent. The electronic application must be
capable of printing out or fransferring the records in a format that is readily
understandable to an Administration or other law enforcement agent at the registered
location, Electronic copies of prescription records must be sortable by prescriber name,

patient name, drug dispensed, and date filled.”

it 12
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COST RECOVERY

28. Code section 125.3 states, in part, that the Board may request the administrative law
judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a viclation or violations of the licensing act to
pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the case.

JUNE 11, 2012, INSPECTION

29, From on or about November 4, 2004, to January 1, 2013, Respondent Brodt was the
Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) at Respondent FFSP.

30. On February 3, 2012, Respondent Brodt and Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription
number 6431311 to Patient A' for orphenadrine 100 mg extended release instead of orphenadrine
100 mg immediate release as prescribed.

31, On or about June 11, 2012, a Board investigator conducted an inspection at
Respondent FFSP after the Board received an online complaint from Patient A that the pharmacy
charged patient A for unwanted medication and disp’enséd orphenadrine 100 mg that was not in
accordance with a physician’s written prescription.

32. During the inspection, the investigator observed the following:

a.  The premises was cluttered and disorganized despite written notice in 2009 and 2010,

b.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt did not conduct a quality assurance report
and review of the February 3, 2012, medication error for prescription number 6431311 for
orphenadrine 100 mg.

¢.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt could not provide a dispensing record for
prescription number 6431311.

d.  Multiple expired products were on Respondent FFSP’s pharmacy shelves including,
but not limited to, the following: glycerin (January 2006), alcohol (June 2009), ether (December
1992), water (March 2012), hydrogen peroxide (July 2004), bismuth subgallate (November 30,
2010), and sodium borate (March 31, 2010).

' Patients are identified by number to protect their privacy.
13
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e.  When Patient A complained to Respondent Chan about the February 3, 2012,
medication error for prescription number 6431311 for orphenadrine. Respondent Chan did not
acknowledge the error, and, instead, insisted that Respondent FFSP dispensed the prescript'ion
correctly.

33. On or about August 27, 2012, a Board investigator issued notices of noncompliance
to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Brodt.

DRUGS

34, TFortesta is the brand name for testosterone gel. It is a Schedule IH controlled
substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11056, subdivision (f)(30), and a dangerous
drug pursuant to Code section 4022,

35, Orphenadrine is the generic name for trade drug Norflex, It is a dangerous drug
pursuant to Code section 4022,

36, Valacyclovir is the generic name for Valtrex and is a dangerous drug pursuant to
Code section 4022.

ACCUSATION
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises)
37.  Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (c).) During a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized. The underlying facts are set forth
more particularty in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Variation from Prescription)
38. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for deviating from the
requirements of a prescription. (Bus, & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §
1716.) On or about February 3, 2012, Respondent FFSP dispensed orphenadrine 100 mg

14
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extended release instead of orphenadrine 100 mg immediate release, as prescribed. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.
THIRD CAUSF. FOR DISCIPLINE
(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)

39. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a medication
error quality assurance review report in the pharmacy for the present year. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §1711,) On or about February 3, 2012,
Respondent FFSP committed a medication error regarding prescription number 6431311 for
orphenadrine 100 mg. Respondent FFSP was required to prepare a report within two days of the
date of the discovery of the error. However, during a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent FFSP did not have available a quality assurance review report on file and
immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29
through 32, above.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Dangerous Drugs)

40. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to maintain records of
dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof, Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j) and (o) and 4081, subd. (a).) During a
Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012, Respondent FFSP did not have any dispensing
records for preseription number 6431311 for orphenadrine available for Board review, The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above. -

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expired Drugs in Inventory)

41. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for maintaining expired drugs in its
inventory. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subd. (o), and 4342, subd. (a).) During a Board
inspection on or about June 11, 2012, a board investigator observed that Respondent FFSP
maintained several expired pharmacy products. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above.

i 15
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises)
42, Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (¢).) During a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent Brodt was the PIC and Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized,
The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29, 31, and 32, above
- SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE ~

(Variation from Prescription)

43. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for deviating from the
requirements of a prescription. (Bus. & Prof, Code, § 4301, subds, (j} and (0}, Cal. Code Regs.,
tit. 16, § 1716.) On or about February 3, 2012, Respondent Brodt dispensed orphenadrine 100 mg
extended release instead of orphenadrine 100 mg immediate release, as prescribed. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)

44,  Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a medication
error quality assurance review report in the pharmacy for the present year, (Bus. & Prof. Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, §1711.) On or about February 3, 2012,
Respondent Brodt committed a medication error regarding prescription number 6431311 _for
orphenadrine 100 mg. Respondent Brodt was required to prepare a report within two days of the
date of the discovery of the error. However, during a Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012,
Respondent Brodt did not have available a quality assurance review report on file and
immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29
through 32, above.

i
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NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Dangerous Drugs)
45. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to maintain records of

dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof, Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and 4081, subd. (a).) During a

Board inspection on or about June 11, 2012, Respondent Brodt did not have any dispensing

records for prescription number 6431311 for orphenadrine available for Board review. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 29 through 32, above.

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expired Drugs in Inventory)

46. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for maintaining expired drugs in
its inventory, (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subd, (o), and 4342, subd. (a).) During a Board
inspection on or about June 11, 2012, a board investigator observed that Respondent Brodt
maintained several expired pharmacy products. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 29, 31 and 32, above,

JUNE 26, 2013, INSPECTION

47, From on or about January 1, 2013, to present, Respondent Nguyen was the PIC at
FFSP.

48.  On or about January 24, 2013, Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen dispensed
prescription number 4149633 for Patient B for a testosterone gel preparation and wrote an
expiration date of July 2013. However, two ingredients expired on June 2013 and one ingredient
did not have a documented expiration date.

49,  On or about March 27, 2013, Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription number
4150016 for Patient B for Fortesta with directions to use four pumps a day, instead of the eight
pumps a day as prescribed.

50. On orabout April 19, 2013, Respondent FFSP dispensed prescription number
6143144 for Patient B for valacyclovir 1 gram once a day, instead of the prescribed 500 mg twice

a day.
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51.  On or about May 13, 2013, Patient B informed Respondent FFSP of the medication
errors. '

52. On or about June 26, 2013, a Board investigatbr conducted an inspection at
Respondent FFSP after the Board received an online complaint that the pharmacy dispensed
medications that were not in accordance with a physician’s written prescriptions.

53.  During the inspection, the investigator observed the following:

"a.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide a compounding
log for prescription number 4146533 for Patient B for testosterone,

b.  Respondent Nguyen admitted that he assigned an expiration date to the compounded
testosterone for prescription 4149633 for Patient B that was beyond the expiration date of
multiple ingredients.

c. On or about December 2 and 27, 2011, January 29, February 27, March 22, and April

17, 2012, Respondent FFSP dispensed festosterone gel to Patient B instead of testosterone

- powder as ordered by the original prescription, dated November 7, 2011. Respondent FFSP also

dispensed the compound with incorrect directions for use, stating to use it once a day instead of
twice a day. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide any
documentation showing a change in dosage, form, or directions from the prescribing physician.

d.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen could not provide to fhe Board a current
biennial controlled substance inventory and a record of a biennial inventory for any time period.

e.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not conduct a self-assessment of the
pharmacy’s compliance with federal and state pharmacy law within 30 days of January 1, 2013,
when Respondent Nguyen became the new PIC. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen
could not provide to the Board a copy of a completed current self-assessment that should have
been conducted in July 2011,

f. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not conduct a self-assessment of the
pharmacy’s compliance with compounding laws within 30 days of January 1, 2013, when

Respondent Nguyen became the new PIC. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen could not
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provide to the Board a cbpy of a completed current compounding self-assessment that should
have been conducted in July 2011,

g.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen Respondent FFSP and Respondent
Nguyen did not conduct a quality assurance review report by May 15, 2013, within two business
days of the date that they discovered that they dispensed prescription number 4150016 to Patient
B for Fortesta with incorrect directions. Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable
to provide to the Board a copy of a quality assurance review report.

h.  Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen were unable to provide an original copy to
the Board of prescription number 6423645 to Patient B for valacyclovir 500 mg with directions to
take one tablet twice a day,

i.  Respondent FFSP’s premises was cluttered and disorganized despite written notice in
2009, 2010, and 2012.

j- A Notice of Probation was not posted at Respondent FFSP as required by Condition
Number 11, of the Decision and Order In the Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifty Sutter,
Case No. 3797.

54.  On or about June 26, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of noncompliance to -
Respondent FFSP. The Board issued a citation against Respondent Nguyen, as set forth more
particularly in paragraph 87, below.

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Provide Controlled Substance Inventories)

55.  Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not providing controlled
substance inventories during an inspection, (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1718; and 21 C.F.R. § 1304.04.) During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have available a current biennial inventory and there
was no record of a biennial inventory for any time period. The underlying facts are set forth more
particularly in paragraphs 47, 52, and 53, above.

i
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TWELFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Prepare Controlled Substance Inventory Self-Assessment)

56. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not providing controlled
substance inventory self~assessments during an inspection. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds, (j)
and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1715, subds, (a) and (b}2).) By January 31 and Jhly 1, 2013,
Respondent FFSP was required to conduct controlled substance inventory self-assessménts.
During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have these self-
assessments available for Board review. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in
paragraphs 37, 52, and 53, above,

THIRTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Failure to Prepare Compounding Self-Assessment)

57. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject_ to discipline for not providing copies of
compounding self-assessments during an inspection. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1735.2, subd. (j).) By January 31, 2013 and July 1, 2013, Respondent FFSP
was required to conduct compounding self-assessments. During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have these assessments available for Board review. The
underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 37, 52, and 53, above.

FOURTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Premises —Safe Practice of Pharmacy)
58. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for not maintaining the premises in
a manner suitable for the safe practice of pharmacy. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (0); Cal.
Code Regs., tit. 16, §1714, subd. (b).) During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013,
Respondent FFSP’s facilities were cluttered and disorganized. The underlying facts are set forth

more particularly in paragraphs 47, and 52 through 54, above.
FIETEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)
59. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to prepare a quality

assurance review report in the pharmacy for theﬁesent year. (Bus, & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds.
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(j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit, 16, §1711.) On May 13, 2013, Respondent FFSP discovered that
it made a medication error regarding prescription number 4150016 for Foriesta. Respondent
FFSP was required to investigate and .prepare a report. During a Board inspection on or about
June 26, 2013, Respondent FFSP did not have available a quality assurance review report on file
and immediately retrievable. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
47 though 54, above.

SIXTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Missing Original Prescription for Dangerous Drug)

60. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to retain original
documentation for the disposition of dangerous drugs. (Bus. & Prof. Code, §§ 4301, subds. (j)
and (o) and 4105, subd. (a).) During a Board inspection on or about June 26, 2013, Respondent
FFSP did not have available in readily retrievable form the original prescription number 6423645
for valacyclovir. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 47 through
54, above.

SEVENTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Expiration Date Error)
61. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for assigning an expiration date to
a compounded drug product that was beyond the use date. (Bus. & Prof, Code, §§ 4301, subds.
(i) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1735.2, subd. (h).) On or about January 24, 2013,
Respondent FFSP assigned an expiration date of July 2013 for a testosterone gel when the
shortest expiration date of several of the gel’s components was June 2013, The underlying facts

are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 47 through 54, above,

EIGHTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Labeling Error)
62. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for dispensing medication with
instructions that deviated from the prescription as written by a physician. (Bus, & Prof, Code, §
4301, subds. (j) and (0); Cal. Code Regs., tit. 16, § 1716.) Respondent FFSP dispensed

prescription number 4146533 as a testosterone %ell to be used once a day instead of the
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testosterone powder to be used twice a day. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly
in paragraphs 47 through 54, above,
OCTOBER 8, 2013, INSPECTION

63. On or about October 8, 2013, Board investigators conducted an ingpection at
Respondent FFSP, Board investigators requested copies of transmission of controlled substance
dispensing daté. to Controlled Substance Utilization Review and Evaluation System (CURES) for
2012 through 2013. Respondent FFSP, Respondent Brodt, and Respondent Nguyen were unable
to provide proof of transmission of CURES reports.

64. On October 24, 2013, a Board investigator discovered that Respondent FFSP,
Respondent Brodt, and Respondent Nguyen submitted controlled substance dispensing data to
CURES on February 27, 2012, April 6, 2012, January 21, 2013, July 10, 2013, August 21, 22,
and 29, 2013, and October 15, 22, and 23, 2013, instecad of on a weekly basis as required.
Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen did not file a report for February 2013,

65.  On or about November 5, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of
noncompliance to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen.

66. On or about November 12, 2013, a Board investigator issued a notice of
noncompliance to Respondent Brodit,

NINETEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

| 67. Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (0), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During a Board inspection on or aboﬁt October 8, 2013, Respondent
FFSP did not have available controlled substance dispensing data for Board review. Respondent
FFSP failed to submit controlled subst_ance data to CURES within seven days after the date of
dispensing controlled substances, as r;equired. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly
in paragraphs 63 through 65, above, |
1

il -

FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION AND PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
In the Maiter of the Accusation Against Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy et al.




~ St B W N

10
1
12
13
14
15
i6
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

TWENTIETH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

68. Respondent Brodt’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf,
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) While acting as PIC, Respondent Brodt failed to submit controlled
substance data to CURES within seven days after the dispensing conirolled substances, as
required, The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 63, 64, and 66, above.

TWENTY FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)
69. Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with

controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf.

Code § 11165, subd. {d).) During a Board inspection on or about October 8, 2013, Respondent

Nguyen did not have available controlled substance dispensing data for Board review. While
acting as PCI, Respondenf Nguyen failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES within
seven days after dispensing controlled substances, as required. The undetlying facts are set forth
more particularly in paragraphs 63, 64, and 66, above,

| JANUARY 21. 2015 INSPECTION

70.  On or about November 25, 2014, the Board discovered that Respondent FFSP had
failed to include all prescriptions in its CURES report and was not transmitting data consistently
on a weekly basis as required. On or about January 21, 2015, a Board investigator conducted an
inspection at Respondent FFSP, The Board investigator asked Réspondent’s staff to logon to the
CURES Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP) to confirm that randomly selected
prescription documents for controlled substances that were dispensed from December 15, 2014 to
January 12, 2015 were documented in the CURES‘database. Board investigators found that, of
fifteen selected prescriptions, information for ten were not in the CURES PDMP. Ultimately, the
Board investigator found that, from December 2013 to September 2014, Respondent FFSP failed
to transmit controlled substance data consistently on a weekly basis, and had failed to transmit

data for controlled substances dispensed on Decignber 22,23,24, 30 and 31, 2014. When asked,
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Respondent Nguyen stated that Respondent Chan was responsible for submitted the CURES data
at Respondent FFSP.,
71, Onor about January 21, 2015, a Board investigator issned a notice of noncompliance
to Respondent FFSP and Respondent Nguyen.
TWENTY SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

72. - Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof, Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (0), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about Januvary 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that Respondent FFSP failed to submit controtled substance data to CURES
within seven days after the date of dispensing controlled substances as required, The underlying
facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.

TWENTY THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Gross Negligence)
73, Respondent FFSP’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus, &
Prof. Code, § 4301, subd. (c).} The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
70 through 71, above.
TWENTY FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

74. Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4301, subds. (j} and (o), and Health & Saf.
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about January 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that, while acting as PCI, Respondent Nguyen failed to submit controlled
substance data to CURES within seven days after dispensing controlled substances, as required,
The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.
it
it

i o4

FIRST AMENDED ACCUSATION AND PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
In the Matter of the Accusation Against Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy et al.




=~ B = Y "

o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

TWENTY FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Gross Negligence)
75, Respondent Nguyen’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus. &
Prof. Code, § 4301, subd, (c).) The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs
70 through 71, above.
TWENTY SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Transmit CURES Dispensing Data)

76. Respondent Chan’s license is subject to discipline for failing to comply with
controlled substance laws. (Bus. & Prbf. Code, § 4301, subds. (j) and (o), and Health & Saf,
Code § 11165, subd. (d).) During an inspection on or about January 21, 2015, a Board
investigator found that, while acting as the individual licensed owner of Respondent FFSP,

Respondent FFSP failed to submit controlled substance data to CURES within seven days after

_dispensing controlled substances, as required. The underlying facts are set forth more particularly

in paragraphs 70 through 71, above.
TWENTY SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Gross Negligence) _
77. Respondent Chan’s license is subject to discipline for gross negligence. (Bus, & Prof.

Code, § 4301, subd. {(c).) The underlying facts are set forth more particularly in paragraphs 70

- through 71, above.

PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
78.  Grounds exist for revoking the probation and re-imposing the order of revocation of
Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy Permit and Respondent Brodt’s Pharmacist License.
79.  This Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before the Board under the probation

terms and conditions of the Decision and Order for In the Matter of the Accusation against Four

Fifty Sutter, Brandon Brodlt, and Elaine Chan, Case No, 3797,

25
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80. At all times after the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 1 of
the Disciplinary Order stated, in part, that: “Respondent shall obey all federal and state and
regulations.”

81. At all times after the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 11 of
the Disciplinary Order stated that:

“Respondent FFSP's owner shall prominently post a probation notice provided by
the board in a place conspicuous and readable to the public. The probation notice shall
remain posted during the entire period of probation.

“Respondent FFSP's owner shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or
make any statement which is intended to mislead or is likely to have the effect of
misleading any patient, customer, member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature
of and reason for the probation of the licensed entity.

| “Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of probation.”

82. Atall times afier the effective date of Respondent FFSP’s probation, Condition 12 of
the Disciplinary Order stated that:

“If Respondent FFSP has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent FFSP's license, and probation
shall be automatically extended until ail terms and conditions have been satisfied or the
board has taken other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a
violation of probation, to terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

“If Respondent FFSP viclates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving
Respondent FFSP's owner notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and
carry out the disciplinary order that was stayed, Notice and opportunity to be heard are not
required for those provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic
termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or
an accusation is filed against Respondent FFSP during probation, the Board shall have
continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically extended until

the petition to revoke probation or accusation is%eard and decided.”
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83.  Atall times after the effective date of Respondent Brodt’s probation, Condition 1 of
the Disciplinary Order stated, in part, that: “Respondent shall obey all federal and state and
regulations.”

84, At all times after the effective date of Respondent Brodt’s probation, Condition 14 of
the Disciplinary Order stated that:

“If Respondent Brodt has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent Brodt, and probation shall be
automatically extended until _éll terms and conditions have been satisfied or the board has
taken other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of
probation, to terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

“If Respondent Brodt violates probation in any respect; the Board, after giving
Respondent Brodt notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry
out the disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not
required for those provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic
termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or
an accusation is filed against Respondent Brodt during probation, the Board shall have
continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically extended until
the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.”

FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Obey All Laws)
85. Respondent FFSP’S probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 1, referenced above, by failing to comply with all laws and regulations,
as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 29 through 77, above.

SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Post Notice of Probation)
86. Respondent FFSP’s probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 11, referenced above, by failing to post the Notice of Probation, as

more particularly set forth in paragraphs 52 andZS;, above.
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THIRD CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Comply with Terms of Probation)

87. Respondent FFSP’s probation is subject to revocation because it failed to comply
with Probation Condition 12, referenced above, by failing to comply with any term or condition
of probation, as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 29 through 77, above.

FOURTH CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Failure to Obey All Laws)

88. Respondent Brodt’s probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply
with Probation Condition 1, referenced above, by failing to comply with all laws and regulations,
as more particulatly set forth in paragraphs 37 through 46, 55 through 62, 67 through 69, and 72
through 77, above.

FIFTH CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

(Eailure to Comply with Terms of Probation)
89.  Respondent Brodt’s probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply
with Probation Condition 14, referenced above, by failing to comply with any term or condition
of probation, as more particularly set forth in paragraphs 85 through 88, above.

DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

90. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent FESP,
Complainant alleges that on or about June 15, 2007, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 06 331835. Tﬁe Board ordered a $2,500 fine against Respondent FFSP. That Citation
is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

91. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent FFSP,
Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 08 38139. The Board and ordered a $5,000,00 fine against Respondent FFSP. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

92. | To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Chan,
Complainant alleges that on or about May 21, 2013, in a disciplinary action entitled "In the

Matter of the Accusation against Four Fifty Surgzg, Brandon Brodl, and Elaine Chan," Case No.
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3797, the Board issued a citation against Respondent Chan for subversion. The Board ordered a
$5,000.00 fine against Respondent Chan. That Citation is now final and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth.

93, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,
Complainant alleges that on or about June 15, 2007, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 06 33851, The Board ordered a $1,000.00 fine against Respondent Brodt. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

94. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,
Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation
Number CI 09 40780, The Board ordered a $3,000.00 fine against Respondent Brodt. That
Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth,

95. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Nguyen,

Complainant alleges that on or about March 13, 2014, in a prior action, the Board issued Citation

Number CI 2013 58775. The Board ordered a $3,875.00 fine against Respondent Nguyen. That -

Citation is now final and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.
PRAYER _

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters alleged in this
Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, and that following the hearing, the Board of
Pharmacy issue a decision:

1.  Revoking the probation that was granted by the Board of Pharmacy in Case No. 3797
and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking Pharmacy Permit No. PHY
45225 issued to Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy and Elaine Chan, Owner;

2. Revoking the probation that was granted by the Board of Pharmacy in Case No. 3797
and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking Pharmacist License Number
RPH 43082 issued to Brandon Valor Brodt;

3.  Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 45225 issued to Four Fifty

Sutter Pharmacy and Elaine Chan, Owner;

29
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4, Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician License Number 367361 issued to
Elaine Chan;

5. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 43082 issued to Brandon
Valor Brodt; |

6.  Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 64877 issued to Thinh Phu
Nguyen;

7. Ordering Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy, Elaine Chan, Brandon Valor Brodt, and Thinh
Phu Nguyen to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3; and

8.  Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: /O/Q:a //b | ()l/t«ﬁﬁ/:,u

VIRGI EROLD
Executg!‘!f ficer

Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

SF2013902016/ 90534126.docx
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Exhibit A

Decision and Order

Board of Pharmacy Case No. 3797
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BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY
Elaine Chan Owner

450 Sutter Pharmacy, #710

San Francisco, CA 94108

Pharmacy License No. PHY 94108

BRANDON BRODT

450 Sutter Pharmacy, #712 7™ Floor
San Francisco, CA 94108
Pharmacist License No, RPH 43082

ELAINE CHAN
450 Sutter Pharmacy, #710
San Francisco, CA 94108

Pharmacy Technician License No. TCH 36761

Respondents.

Case No. 3797

DECISION AND ORDER
The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is here by adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This decision shall become effective on June 20, 2013.

It is so ORDERED on May 21, 2013.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

/Z(. Clprog’

By

STANLEY C. WEISSER
Board President
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
DIANN SOKOLOFF
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
TivoTHY J. MCDONOUGH
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 235850
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.0. Box 70550
Qakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2134
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270
E-mail: Tim.Mc¢Donough@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

- Pharmacist No. RPH 43082,

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accugation Against: Case No, 3797
FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY OAH No. 2012020427
Elaine Chan Owner STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
450 Sutter Pharmacy, # 710 DISCIPLINARY ORDER

San Francisco, CA 94108
Pharmacy License No. PHY 45225,

BRANDON BRODT
450 Sutter Street, #712 7th Floor
San Francisco, California 94108

and

ELAINE CHAN

875 Payne Street

Sunnyvale, CA 94087

Pharmacy Technician No. TCH 36761

Respondents.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-
entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy
(Board), She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by

I
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Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Timothy J. McDonough,
Deputy Aftorney Generé,l.

2. Onor about March 7, 2001, the Board issued Pharmacy License No, 45225 to Four
Fifty Sutter Pharmacy (Respondent FFSP), Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy ié owned by Pharmacy
Technician Elaine Chan. The Pharmacy Licénse was in full force and effect at all times.relevant
to the charges brought in Accusation No, 3797 and will expire on March 1, 2013, unless renewed,-

3. Onorabout March 1, 1990, the Board issued Pharmacist License No, 43082 to
Brandon Brodt (Respondent Brodt), The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at all
times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No, 3797 and will expire on January 31,
2014, unless renewed, .
| 4. Onor about January 2, 2002, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License No. 36761 to Elaine Chan (Respondent Chan). The Pharmacist License was in full force
and effect at all ﬁmes relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 3797 and will expire on
July 31, 2013, unless renewed.

All three Respondents are represented in this proceeding by attorney Sandra Mclntosh,
whose address is:
Trepel, Greenfield, Sullivan & Draa LLP
55 South Market Street

15th Floor
San Jose, CA 95113

JURISDICTION

5, Accusation No. 3797 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against all Respondents. Thc Accusation and all
other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondents on August 22, 2011,
Respondents timely filed a Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.

6. A copy of Accusation No. 3797 is attached as exhibit A and incorporated by
reference, -

i
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ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

7. Respondents hgwe carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understand the
charges and allegations in Accusation No, 3797, Respondents have also carefully read, fully
discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order, _

8. Respondents are fully aware of their legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the n'g}ﬁ 1o be represented by counsel at
their own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against them, the right
to present evidence and to testify on their own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to
compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration
and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Adminisirative Procedure Act and other applicable laws, |

9. Respondents voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and

every right set forth above.
CULPABILITY

10.  Respondents understand that the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 3797, if
proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline upon their Pharmacist, Pharmacy,
and Pharmacy Technician Licenses. For the purpose of resolving the Accusation without the
expense and uncertainty of further proceedings, Respondents agree that, at a hearing,
Complainant could establish a factual basis for the charges in the Accusation and that those
charges constitute cause for discipline. Respondents give up their right to contest that cause for
discipline exists based on those charges,

11, Respondent FFSP agrees that its Pharmacy License is subject to discipline and agrees
to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below,

12.  Respondent Brodt agrees that his Pharmacist License is subject to discipline and he

agrees to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below.

STIFULATED SETTLEMENT (3797)
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13.  Respondent Chan agrees to settle the Accusation against her Pharmacy Technician
License by accepting the issuance of a citation for violating Business and Professions Code
section 4301, subdivision {q),

| CONTINGENCY

14, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondents understand
and agree that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board may communicate directly with
the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to or participation by
Respondents or their counsel, By signing the stipulation, Respondents understand and agree that
they may not withdraw their agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the
Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and
Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for
this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action beiween the parties, and the Board shall
not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter.

15, The parties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement

- and Disciplinary Order, including facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and

effect as the originals,

16.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order are intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discuséions,
negot.iaiions, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or qtherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties.

17.  In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without furkherk notice or-formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order: ,

CITATION IN SETTLEMENT FOR RESPONDENT CHAN

1. Respondent Chan agrees to seitle the Accusation against her Pharmacy Technician

License by accepting the issuance of a citation and fine for violating Business and Professions

4
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Code section 4301, subdivision (q). The administrative fine will be $5,000 and Respondent Chan
will be permitted to make payments on a payment plan approved by the Board to be paid in full
within 24 months of the effective date of this decision. Respondent Chan agrees not to appeal
this citation and fine.

DISCIPLINARY ORDER FOR 450 SUTTER PHARMACY

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacy License No, 45225 issued to Respondent FESP

is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent FFSP is placed on probation for
five (5) years on the following terms and conditions.

1, Obey All Laws

‘Respondent FFSP shall obey all state and federal laws and regmaﬂons.

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall report any of the following oceurrences to the board, in

writing, within seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence:

0  anarrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws

0 apleaof guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or'indictment

00 aconviction of any crime

0 discipling, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency
which involves respondent’s pharmacy license or which is related to the practice of
pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling or distributing, billing, or

_ charging for any drug, device or controlled substance. '

Failure 1o timely report any such oceurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.

2.  Report to the Board

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall report to the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by

the board or its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed.
Among other requirements, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall state in each report under penalty of
petjury whether there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure

5
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to submit timely reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any
period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of
probation. Moreover, if the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be
automatically extended until such time as'the final report is made and accepted by the board.

- 3, Interview with the Board |

- Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall appear in pérson
for interviews with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by
the Board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification
to Board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the Board or it
designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation.

4.  Cooperate with Board Staff ‘

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall cooperate with the board's inspection program and with the
board's monitoring and investigation of respondent's compliance with the terms and conditions of
their probation, Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation,

5.  Reimbursement of Board Cogts _

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Respondent FFSP’s owner
shall pay to the board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the amount of $14.,481.50.
Respondent FFSP shall make payments on a payment blan approved by the Board. There shall be
no deviation from this schedule absent prior written approval by the board or its designee. Failure;
to pay costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. - |

The filing of bankruptey by Respondent FFSP shall not relieve Respondent FFSP of their

responsibility to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution.

6.  Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as
determined by the Board each and every year of probation, Such costs shall be payable to the
Board on a schedule as directed by the board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the
deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

H
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 probation,

take any other action it deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the

notice to ongoing patients that specifies the anticipated closing date of the pharmacy and that

7. Status of License

Respondent FFSP shall, at all times while on probation, maintain current licensure with the
Board. If Respondent FFSP’s owner submits an application to the Board, and the application is
app:_*oved, for a change of location, change of permit or change of ownership, the Board shall
retain continuing jurisdiction over the license, and Respondent FFSP shall remain on probation as-

determined by the Board. Failure to maintain current licensure shall be considered a violation of

If Respondent FFSP’s license expires or is cancelled by operation of law or otherwise at
any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof or otherwise, upon
renewal or reapplication Respondent FFSP license shall be subject to all terms and conditions of
this probation not previously satisfied.

8.  License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent FFSP’s owner discontinue
business, Respondent FFSP’s owner may tender the premises license to the Board for surrender.

The Board or its designee shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or

surrender of the license, Respondent FFSP will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions
of probation. ‘

Upon aeceptance of the surrender, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall relinquish the premises
wall and renewal license to the board within ten (10) days of notification by the Board that the
surrender is accepted. Respondent FFSP’s owner shall further submit a completed
Discontinuance of Business form according to Board guidelines and shall notify the Board of the
records inventory transfer, |

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall also, by the effective date of this decision, arrange for the

continuation of care for ongoing patients of the pharmacy by, at minimum, providing a written

identifies one or more area pharmacies capable of taking up the patients' care, and by cooperating

as may be necessary in the transfer of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five

7
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days of its provision to the pharmacy’s ongoing patients, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall provide
a copy of the written notice to the Board. For the purposes of this provision, "ongoing patients"
means those patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refills
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled a prescrip’fion within the preceding sixty (60}
days.

Respondent FFSP’s owner may not apply for any new licensure from the board for three (3)

years from the effective date of the surrender. Respondent FFSP’s owner shall meet all

|| requirements applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is

submitied to the Board,

Respondent FFSP’s owner further stipulates that he or she shall reimburse the Board for its
costs of investigation and prosecution prior to the acceptance of the surrender.

9.  Notice to Employees

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall, upon or before the effective date of this decision, ensure
that all employees inveolved in permit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions
of probation, either by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, circulating such notice, or
both. If the notice required by this provision is posted, it shall be posted in a prominent place and
shall remain posted throughout the probation period, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall ensure that
any employees hired or used after the effoctive date of this decision are made aware of the terms
and conditions of probation by posting a notice, circulating a notice, or béth. Additionally,
Respondent FFSP’s owner shall submit written notification to the Board, within fifteen (15) days
of the effective date of this decision, that this term has been satisfied. Failure to submit such
notification to the Board shall be considered a violation of probation.

"Employees” as used in this provision includes all full-time, part-time,

volunteer, temporary and relief employees and independent contractors employed or

hired at any {ime during probation,

10.  Owners and Officers: Knowledge of the Law

Respondent FFSP's owner shall provide, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of

this decision, signed and dated statements from its owners, including any owner or holder of ten

8
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+ provide said statements under penalty of perjury shall be considered a violation of probation,

e =1 Sy th B L N

- revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against

percent (10%) or more of the interest in respondent FFSP or respondent FFSP's stock, and any
officer, stating under penalty of perjury that said individuals have read and are familiar with state

and federal laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. The failure to timely

11.  Posted Notice of Probation

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall prominently post a probation notice provided by the board
in a place conspicuous and readable 1o the public. The probation notice shall remain posted
during the entire period of probation.

Respondent FFSP’s owner shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or make
any statement which is intended to mislead or is likely to have the effect of misleading any
patient, customer, member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature of and reaéon for the
probation of the licensed entity.

Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of probation,

12. Violation of Probation

If Respondent FFSP has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board
shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respoﬂdent FFSP’s license, and probation shall be
automaticaﬁy extended until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the board has taken
other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to
terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If Respondent FFSP violates probation in any respect, the Board, afier giving Respondent
FFSP’s owner notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the
disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those

provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay and/or

Respondent FFSP during probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of
probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation s
heard and decided, |

i
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13.  Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the board or its designee indicating successful completion of
probation, Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy license will be fully restored,

14,  Community Serviees Program

Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent FFSP’s owner shall
submit to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, a community service program in which
Respondent FFSP shall provi-de‘free health~care related services to a community or charitable
facility or agency for at 50 hours per year for each year of probation, | _

Within thirty (30) days of Board approval thereof, Respondent FFSP*s owner shall submit
documentation to the Board demonstrating commencement of the community service program,
Respondent FFSP’s owner shall report on progress with the community service program in the
quarterly reports,

Failure to timely submit, commence, or comply with the program shall be considered a
violation of probation,

15, Separate File of Records

Respondent FFSP shall maintain and make available for inspection a separate file of all

records pertaining to the acquisition or disposition of all controlled substances. Failure to

maintain such file or make it available for inspection shall be considered a violation of probation,

16. Monetary Contribution to Community
Respondent FFSP shall contribute to the general community $21,000 in free,
pharmacy-related services during the first 2 years of its probationary period. Respondent FFSP’s
owner shall report on progress with the monetary contribution to the community in the quarterly
reports. Failure to timely submit, commence, or comply with the program shall be considered a
violation of probation.
DiSCIPLINARY ORDER FOR PHARMACIST BRANDON BRODT
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacist License No. 43082 issued to Respondent
Brandon Brodt is revoked. However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent Brodt is placed on

probation for four (4) years on the following terms and conditions.

10
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1.  Suspension

As part of probation, Respondént Brodt is suspended from working as a pharmacist for 30
days beginning the effective date of this decision.

During suspension, Respondent Brodt shall not enter any pharmacy area or any portion of
the licensed premises of a wholesaler, veterinary food-animal drug retailer or any other distributor
of drugs licensed by the board, or any drug manufacturer, or any other Jocation where dangerous
drugs and devices or controlled substances are maintained. Respondent Brodt shall not perform
any of the duties of a pharmacist, nor do any act involving drug selection, selection of stock,
manufacturing, dispensing; nor shall Respondent Brodt manage, administér, or be a consultant o
any licensee of the board, or have access to or control the ordering, inanufacturing or dispensing
of dangerous drugs and devices and controlled substances,

Respondent Brodt shall not direct, contro! or perform any aspect involving the distribution

of dangerous drugs and devices and controlled substances, Subject to the above resirictions,

respondent may continue to own or hold an interest in any licensed entity in which he or she

- holds an interest at the time this decision becomes effective unless otherwise specified in this

order.

Failure to comply with this suépension shall be considered a violation of probation,

2, Obey All Laws

Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations.

Respondent Brodt shall repor't any of the following occurrences to the Board, in writing,

within seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence:

0 an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws

0 anarrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any state or fedei‘a] law

[} aplea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or indictment

0  aconviction of any crime

11
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0 discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency

which involves respondent’s Pharmacist license or which is related to the practice of
. pharmacy or the manufacturing, obiaining, handling or distribution or billing or

charging for of any drug, device or cbntfolléd substance,

Failure to timely report any such oceurrence shall be considered a violation of probation,

3. Report to the Board .

Respondent Brodt shall report to the board quarterly, on & schedule as directed by the Board

or its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among other

requirements, Respondent Brodt shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether there

- has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation, Failure to submit timely

reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation, Any period(s) of
delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation,
Moreover, if the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically
extended until such time as the final report is made and accepted by the board,

4.  Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent Brodt shall appear in person for
interviews with the Board or its designee, upon request at such intervals and locations as are
determined by the Board orits designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without
prior notification to board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled inferviews with
the Board or its designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a vielation of
probation, |

3. Coopérate w&th Board Staff

Respondent Brodt shall cooperate with the Board's :inspebtion program and with the Board's
monitoring and investigation of Respondent Brodf's compliance with the terms and ¢onditions of
hig ﬁrobation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation.
i
i
i
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employers of the decision in case number 3797 and the terms, conditions and restrictions imposed

6.  Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, Respondent Brodt shall notify all present and prospective

on Respondent Brodt by the decision, as follows:

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen (15) days of
respondent undertaking any new employment, respondent shall cause his direct supervisor,
designated representative-in-charge (including each new designated representaﬁve-in-chargc
employed during respondent’s tenure of employment), and owner to report to the Board in writing
acknowledging that the listed individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 3797 and
terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be Respondent Brodt’s responsibility to ensure
that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgement(s) to the-board.

If Respondent Brodt works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment
service, respondent must notify his direct supervisor, designated representative-in-charge and
owner at each entity Licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the decision in case
number 3797 in advance of the respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of
this notification must be provided to the board upon request. ' ‘

Furthermore, within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, and within fifteen
(15) days of respondent undertaking any new employment by or fhrough a pharmacy employment
service, respondent shall cause his dircét supervisot with the pharmacy employment service to
report to the Eéard in writing acknowledging that he has read the decision in case number 3797
and the terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be the respondent’s responsibility 10
eusure that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the board.

Failure to timely notify present or prospective émploy’er(s) or to cause that/those
employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgements to the board shall be considered a violation of
probation, ‘

“Employment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time,

part-time, ternporary or relief service or pharmacy management service as a

designated representative or in any position for which a designated representative

13
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license is a requirement or criterion for employment, whether the respondent is

considered an employee or independent contractor or volunteer.

7.  No Being Designated Representative-in-Charge

During the period of probaﬁon, Respondent Brodt shall not be the designated
representative-in-charge of any entity licensed by the Board unless otherwise specified in this
order. Assumption of any such imauthorized sypervision responsibilities shall be considered a
violation of probaﬁon.

8.  Reimbursement of Board Costs

As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Respondent Brodt shall pay
to the Board ifs costs of investigation and prosecution in the amount of $3,000. Respondent
Brodt shall make the payments on a payment plan approved by the Board. There shall be no
deviation from this schedule absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee. Failure to
pay costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation,

The filing of bankruptey by Respondent Brodt shall not relieve Respondent Brodt of his
responsibility to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution.

9. Probation Monitoring Costs _

Respondent Brodt shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined
by the Boérd cach and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the Board on a
schedule as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as
directed shall be considered a viclation of probation.

10. Status of License

Respondem Brodt shall, at all times while on probation, maintain an active, current
pharmacist license with the Board, including any period during which suspension or probation is
tolled, Failure to maintain an active, current license shall be considered a violation of probation.

If Respondent Brodt’s Pharmacist license expires or is cancelled by operation of law or
othelwisé at any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to
tolling or otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication respondent's license shall be stibject to all
terms and conditions of this probation not previously satisfied.

14
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11.  License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Following the effective date of this decision, should Reépondent Brodt cease work due to
retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of probation,
Respondent Brodt may tender his designated representative license to the Board for surrender,
The Board or its designee shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or

take any other action it deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the

~surrender of the license, Respondent Brodt will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions

of probation, This surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shall become a part of
Respondent Brodt’s license history with the board.

Upon accepténce of the surrender, Respondent Brodt shall relinquish his pharmacist license
to the board within ten (10) days of notification by the board that the surrender is accepted,
Respondent may not reapply for any license, permit, or registration from the board for three (3)
years from the effective date of the surrender. Respongient Brodt shall meet all requirements
applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to the
Board. | |

12. Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or

Employmént

Respondent Brodt shall notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of any change of
employment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving and the address of the new
employer, supervisor and owner and work schedule, if known, Respondent shall further notify
the board in writing within ten (10) days of a change in name, residence address and mailing
address, or phone number,

Failure to timely notify the board of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es), or
phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

13. Tolling of Probation

Except during periods of suspension, Respondent Brodt shall, at all times while on
probation, be employed as a designated representative in California for 2 minimum of 40 hours

per calendar month. Any month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of

15
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probation, i.¢., the period of probation shall be extended by one month for each month during
which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondent
Brodt must nonetheless corﬁply with all terms and conditions of probation.

Should Respondent Brodt, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation)
cease working as a designated representative for a miﬁimum of 40 hours in California,
Respondent Brodt must notify the board in writing within ten (10) days of cessation of work and
must firther notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the resumption of work. Any
failure to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

1t is a violation of probation for respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant to the
provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive months,
exceeding thirty-six (36) months. .
"Cessation of work" means any calendar month duﬁng which respondent is not-
working as a designated representative for at least 40 hours as a designated

representative as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4053.

“Resumption of work” means any calendar month during which respondent is

working as a designated representative for at least 40 hours as & desi gnated

representative as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4053,

14,  Violatien of Probation

If a Respondent Brodt has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board
shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent Brodt, anﬂ proba'tion shall automatically be
extended until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the boérd has taken other action as
deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to ierminate
probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If Respondent Brodi violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent
Brodt notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary
order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not fequired for those provisions
stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of

the license. If a petition to revoke probation or an-accusation is filed against Respondent Brodt

16
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during probation, the board shall have continuing jurisdiction, and the period of probation shall be
automatically extended, until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided.

15. Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the Board indicating successful completion of probation,
Respondent Brodt’s Pharmacist License will be fully restored.

16, No Ownership of Licensed Premises _

Respondent Brodt shall not own, have any legal or beneficial interest in, or serve as a
manager, administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any business,
firm, partnership, or corporation currently or hereinafter licensed by the board. Respondent Brodt
shall slell or transfer any legal or beneficial interest in any entity licensed by the board within
ninety (90} days following the effective date of this decision and shall immediately thereafter
provide written proof thereof to the board. Failure to timely divest any legal or beneficial
interest(s) or provide documentation thereof shall be considered a violation of probation.

17.  Community Services Program

Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Brodt shall submit
to the Board or its designes, for prior approval, a community service program in which
Respondent Brodt shall provide free health-care related services on a regular basis to-a
communpity or charitable facility or agency for at least 30 hours per year while on probation.
Within thirty (30) days of board approval thereof, Respondent Brodt shall submit documentation
to the board demonstrating commencement of the community service prd gram, A record of this
notification must be provided to the board upon request. Respondent Brodt shall report on
progress with the community service program in the quarterly reports. Failure {o timely submit,
commence, or comply with the program shall-be considered a violation of probation.

18. Remedial Education

Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Brodt shall submit
to the Board or its designee, for prior approval, an appropriate program of remedial education
related to compounding and record keeping, The program of remedial education shall consist of

at least 10 hours each year for the first three years of Respondent Brodt’s probation. The
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' Brodt's knowledge of the course. If Respondent Brodt does not achieve a passing score on the

“subject area.

| pharmacy of which he is not the current PIC, The Board may, in case of an employment change

education classes shall be at respondent’s own expense. All remedial education shall be in
addition to, and shall not be credited toward, continuing education (CE) courses used for license
renewal purposes.

Failure to timely submit or complete the approved remedial education shall be considered a
violation of probation. The period of probation will be automatically extended until such
remedial education is successfully completed and written proof, in a form accepiable to the
Board, is provided to the board or its designee,

Following the conipletion of each course, the Board or its designee may requi;e the

respondent, at his or her own expense, to take an approved examination to test the Respondent

examination, this failure shall be considered a violation of probation. Any such examination

failure shall require Respondent Brodt to take another course approved by the Board in the same

19.  Consultant for Owner or Pharmacist-In-Charge

During the'period of probation, Respondent Brodt shall not supervise any intern pharmacist,
or serve as a consultant to any entitj/ liccnged by the board. In the event that the R.eépondent
Brodt is currently the pharmacist-in-charge of a pharmacy, the pharmacy shall retain an
independent consultant af its own expense who shall be responsible for reviewing pharmacy
operations on a monthly basis for compliance by Respondent Brodt with state and federal laws
and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy and for compliance by Respondent Brodt
with the obligations of a pharmacist-in-charge. The consultant shall be a pharmacist licensed by
and not on probation with the board and whose name shall be submitted to the Board or its
designee, for prior approval, Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision.

Respondent Brc_)dt shall not be a pharmacist-in-charge at more than one pharmacy or at any

by respondent or for other reasons as deemed appropriate by the board or its designee, preciude
Respondent Brodt from acting as 2 pharmacist-in-charge. Failure to timely retain, seek approval
of; or ensure timely reporting by the consultant shall be considered a violation of probation.

18
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20. Tolling of Suspension
During the period of suspension, Respondent Brodt shall not leave California for any period

exceeding ten (10) days, regardless of purpose (including vacation). Any such absence in excess -

.of the (10) days during suspension shall be considered a violation of probation. Moreover, any

absence from California during the period of suspension exceeding ten (10) days shall toll the
suspension, i.¢., the‘ suspension shall be extended by one day for each day over ten (10) days
Respondent Brodt is absent from California. During any such périod of tolling of suspension,
Respondent Brodt must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation.

Respondent Brodt must notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of departure, and
must further notify the board in writing within ten (1 () days of return. The failure to provide such
notification(s) shall constitute a violation of probation, Upon such departure and return,
resﬁonden‘t shall not resume the practice of pharmacy until notified by the board that the period of
suspension has been satisfactorily complet'ed.

21, Ethics Course '

- Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Brodt
shall enroll in a course-in ethics, at respondent’s expense, approved in advance by the Board or its
designee. Failure to initiate the course during the first year of probation, and complete it within
the second year of probation, is a violation of probation,

Respondent Brodt shall submit a certificate of completion to the Board or its designee

within five days after completing the course.
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T have read and fully discussed with Respondents Brandon Brodt, Respendent 450 Sutter
Pharmacy, and Respondent Elaine Chan the terms and conditions and other matters contained in
the sbove Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. 1 approve its form and content.

paten: 72/ b))z %é/,,,m,,,, f)}/AM
Sandra Mclntosh

Attomney for Respondents

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order are hereby respectfully

' submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs,

Daled: / {;l"‘ 7“/ f}\ Respectfully submiited,

Kamara D, HARRIS

Attorney General of California
D1aNN SOKOLOFF

Supervising Deputy Aticmey General

L0

pm?’?xtlomuy Genewl
Anorneys for Complaineny

SF2010900268
90275499 doc

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (3787)




Exhibit A

Accusation No, 3797

e kb s o st At @ ¢



—

) | ] o] ) 3 ] [} 3 3 — — — — a—y fa—y p—_ | G — S—
cQ ~J L= th P LN ] o] Eamnd < > o0 -3 (=% [ ¥, ] - L] ] —_ <>

| DIANN SOKOLOFRF

oo -~ O h ot B W o

KamaLa D, HARRIS ‘
Attorney General of California

Supservising Deputy Attorney General
TIMOTHY J. MCDONOUGH
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 235850
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floot
P.O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 622-2134
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270-
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA |

1| 450 Sutter Street, #710

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case N_o, 3797

BRANDON BRODT

450 Sutter Street, #712 7th Floor.
San Francisce, California 94108
Pharmacist No, RPH 43082,

ELAINE CHAN

Owner Four Fifty-Sutter Pharmacy
§75 Payne Street

Sunnyvale, CA 94087

Pharmacy Technician No. TCH 36761,

ACCUSATION

 and
FOUR FIFTY SUTTER PHARMACY
450 SUTTER STREET, #710
SAN FRANCISCO, CA

San Francisco, CA 94108
Pharmacy License No. PHY45225

Respondents. |

Complainant alleges:

)

PARTIE

[

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity

as the Bxecutive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

—3
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‘Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy (FFSP),

2. Onorabout March 1, 1990, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License
WNumber RPH 43082 to Brandon Brodt (Respondent Brodt), The Pharmacist License was in full
force and effect &t all times relevant to the chérges alleged in this Acousation and will expire on
January 31, 201 2, vnless renewed, Since approximately November 4, 2004, Respondent Brodt
has been and/or has been reflected in Board records as the Pharmatist-in-Charge for Resbondent
Four Fifty Sutter Pharmaoy. _

3. Onorabout March 7, 2001, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy License
Number PHY45225 to Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy (Respondent FFSP), The Pharmacy License
was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges alleged in this Accusation and will
expire' on March 1, 2012, unless renewed, '

4, Onorabout January 2, 2002, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician
License Number TCH 36761 to Elaine Chan (Respondent Chan}, The Pharmacist Technician
License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges alleged in this Accusation

and will expire on July'3 1, 2011, unless renewed, Respondent Chan is thelowner of Respondent

JURISDICTION

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of
Consumner Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the
Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. |

6. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substanceé
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 st seq]. '

7. Section 4300 of the Code states, in relevant part;

"(a) Bvery license issued may be suspended or revoked.

"(b) The board shall discipline the holdsr of any Heense issued by the board, whose default
has been eﬁtered or whose case has been heard by the board and found guilty, by any of the
following methods:

"(1) Suspending judgment,

Accusation
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"(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

"(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one year.
"(4) Revoking his or her license. _

"(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her as the board in its

diseretion may deem proper.

"(¢} The proceedings under this article shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 5
(commencing with Section 11500) of Part 1 of Division 3 of the Government Code, and the board
shall have all the powefs granted therein, The action shall be final, except that the propriety of
the action is subject to review by the supeﬁor court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of
Civil Procedure,”

8. Section 118, subdivision (b), of the Code provides that the suspension, expiration,
surrender, or cancellation of a license shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a
disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued
or reinstated.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

9. Section 4301 of the Code states, in relevant part: |
"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional

conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake,

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

“(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or ind'iréct]y, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable

federal and state laws and regulations govcrnin g pharmacy, including regulations established by

|| the board.

"(q) Engaging in any conduct that subverts or attempts to subvert an investigation of the

board.”

Accusation
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10. Section 4113, subdivision (b) of the Code states, in relevant part:

“The pharmacist;in»charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all state
and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.”

11, Section 4077 of the Code states, in relevant part, that except as provided in
subdivisions (b) and (c) of this sectiox;, no person shall dispense any dangerous drug upon
prescription except in a container correctly labeled with the information required by Section
4076.

12.  Section 4076 of the Code states, in relevant part:

.”(a) A pharmaeist shall not dispense any prescription except in a container that meets the

requiremerits of state and federal law and is correctly labeled with all of the following;

“ (9) The expiration date of the effectiveness of the drug dispensed,”
REGULATIONS

13, California Code of Regulations, file 16, section 1718, states: -

"Current Inventory' as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and Professicns
Code shall be considered to include complet.e- accountability for all dangerons drugs haﬁdled by
every licensee enumersated ’in Sections 4081 and 4332, h

"The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 1304 shall be
available for Inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the date of the inventory.”

14. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3, states:

“(a) For each compounded drug product,' the pharmacy records shall include:

*(1) The master formula record.

“(2) The date the drug product was compounded,

%(3) The identity of the pharmacy personnel who compounded the di'ug product,

“(4) The identity of the pharmacist reviewing the final drug product.

“(3) The quantity of each compoenent used in compounding the drug product.

“(6) The manufacturer and lof number of each component. If the manufacturer name is

demonstrably unavailable, the name of the supplier may be substituted, Exempt from the
4
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r.equirements in this paragraph are sterile products compounded on 2 one-time basis for
administration within fwenty-four hours to an inpatient in a health care facility licensed under
section 1250 of the Health and Safety Code, |

* “(T) The equipment used in compounding the drug product. .

“®A pharrhaéy assigned reference or lot number for the compounded drug product,

“(9) The expiratibn date of the final compounded drug product.

“(10) The quantity or amount of drug produet compounded, J

“(b) Pharmacies shall maintain records of the proper acquisition, storage, and destruction of
chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products, and components used in pcmpound.ing.

“(¢) Chemicals, bulk drug substances, dmg products, and componenis used to compound
drug products shall be obtained from relizble spppliers. The pharmacy shéll acquire and retain
any available certificates of perity or analysis for chemicals, bulk drug substances, drug products,
and components used in componnding, Certificaies of purity or analysis are not required for drug
products that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration,

*(d) Pharmacies shall mainfain and retain all records required by this article in the
pharmagcy in 2 readily retrievable form for ai least three years from the date the record was
created,”-

15, California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2 states, in relevant part;

. “(h) Bvery compounded drug product shall be given an expiration date representing the date
beyond which, in the professional judgment of the pharmacist performing or supervising the
compounding, it should not be used. This "beyond use date" of the compounded drug product
shall not exceed 180 days from preparation or the shortest expiration date of any component in
the compounded drug product, unless.a longer date is supported by stability studies of finished
drugs or compounded drug products using the same components and packaging. Shorter dating
than set forth in this subsection may be used if it is deemed appropriate in the professional
Judgment of the responsible pharmacist.”

i
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- 'COST RECOVERY

16. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in relevant pat, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or Violaﬁons of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

November 25, 2008 Inspection at FFSP.

17.  On or about November 25, 2008, Board Investigator Nip conducted an inspection at
Respondent Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy (FFSP) afier the Board received a tip that a technician at
the pharmacy was acting ag a pharmacist by checking off prescﬂptions and consulting with
patients. fhe complaint also claimed that “root canal powder” was manufactured by Respondent
Elaine Chen (Chan), a pharmacy technician and sole owner of FFSP, at her home without the
supervision of a pharmacist. According to the complaint, the root canal powder was brought back
into the pharmacy to be dispensed to dental offices,’ During the inspéction, Investigator Nip
asked Respondent Chan about the compounding of root canal powder, Respondent Chan said that
the phannaéy had not compounded this product for a long time and denjed that any of the product
wag made outside of the pharmacy, |

18. Atthe épnclusion of the inspection, Investigatc‘)r Nip issued a written notice for non-
complianoe based on the following; 1) a prescription with an incorrect expiration date on its label
was in the will call area® and ready for patient pick-up; 2) a coumpounded product was found in
the pharmacy’s inventory without a retrievable compounding record and formula during and after
the inspection; 3) a compounded product Isbeled with a 12 month expiration date from the date of | -
the preparation date was found in the will call area ready for patient pick-up; (4) numerous
compounded products--with expiration dates beyond the allowable 180 days—- were located on the

compounding shelves and inventory area; (5) lack of a Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) power

' The investigation in 2008 did not reveal sufficient evidence to substantiate these
allegations, ,
The will-call area of a pharmacy is the area where prescriptions are waiting to be picked
up by patients.
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_to conduot another inspection after receiving another complaint about the pharmacy. The

could not be found such as a Cémmunity Pharmacy Self-Assessement. Complete compounding

of attorney for the pharmacist-in-charge, Respondent Brandon Brodt (Brodt), who was not
present during the inspection; and (6) no Theft/Impairment of Licensed Employees policies and
procedures were in place.

December 15, 2009 and March 16, 2010 Inspections at FFSP

19, On or about December 13, 2009, Board Inspector Barnard went to Respondent FFSP

inspectors noticed numerous violations of ﬁharmacy laws. Among those noted was a lack of a
Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) power of attorney for the pharmaoi st-in%harge.; Responden{
Brandon Brodt (Brodt), who was not present during the inspection, Qther violations included a
cluttered and disorganized phénﬁacy, out-dated chemicals in stock which needed to be
quarantined for destruction, prescriptions left in will~-call for over 30 days, labeling etrors on
some prescriptions, lack of a DEA Biennial inventory, and a lack of Quality Assurance Review
Reports and documentation, At the end of the inspection, the inspector asked that certain
documents and photographs be sert to her within fourteen days showi.ng gorrections to the

various violations of pharmacy laws,

20.  On December 23, 2009, Respondent Brodt sent a fax to the Board investigator with a

copy of a DEA power of attorney for himself-the pharmacist-in-charge-and a copy of a DEA
bienniel inventory dated Jul}r 7,2008, The fax indicated that other corrections would be '
addressed in another fax, On Janvary 14, 2010, Inspector Barnard called Respondent Chan to
diseuss the missing documentation and on February 10, 2010, Inspector Barnard received some of
the documentation in the mall that she had requested.
21. OnMarch 16, 2010, Board Inspectors Barnard and Nip returned to FFSP to see if

certain corrections had been made, Inspector Nip was also investigating an additional complaint
receiw}ed by the Board. Most of the pharmacy was still cluttered and disorganized and there was

insufficient clear work space for the safe practice of pharmacy. Many mandatory documents

records were not available. Further, certain Quality Assurance Review Reports were missing.

Accusation



b

== ¥ . N VL -~ I - S~ o B - - B S T~ . T . S - S % R S BT * S gl

oG8~ v W i W R

Inpector Nip found four prescriptions in the will call area with incorrect expiration dates,’
Specifically, presoriptions RX 6412288, RX6412289, RX 6412609, RX6412672 had expiration
dates of March 2, 2011, March 2, 2011, March 11, 201 1,- and March 15, 2011, respecffully.
However, the actual expiration dates for these prescriptions was November 2010, November
2010, July 2010, and Dgoember 2010, resioectl’ully. The ingpectors found return-to-stock
prescription containe‘rg in inventory which were expired. The inspectors noted that the Pharmacy
refridgerator contained expired drugs and chemicals, The backroom refridgerator contained food
along with an HIN1 vaceine and the refridperator did not confain a thermometer. Before leaving
FFSP, the inspectors provided !.egai reference information regarding compliance with pharmacy
laws. The inspectors requested missing documentation to be sent to them in three days.
Respondent Brodt sent a facsimile to the inspectors with some of the requested information on
March 17, 2010. | '

22, During the inspection, Inspectors found a handwritten telephone prescription
document for medications (Testosterone injestable and Ambien 10 mg) ordered by Dr, L.eomidas
Priest for “office use,” Respondent Chan did not know the location of Dr. Priest’s ofﬁce'. She
was also unable to provide a valid office phone nwmber for Dr, Priest. ‘When asked about
compounding rootf canal powder, Respondent Chan indicated that the formula for the product was
very old and that she had not made any for a long time, She admitted she probably did compound
some in the past three years. The inspectors asked for compounding logs for the dental root canal
powder for the last three years, the master formula, and the names of dentists to whom the
compound was sold. The inspectors asked that the documents be sent to thet in three days. The
dacﬁihénts were not timely received, '

April 29, 2010 Inspection ot FFSP

23, On April 29, 2010, Inspector Nip returned to FFSP for a further inspection. Much of

the pharmacy area had been oleared of debris, However, the compounding counter was still

cluttered, contained expired chemicals, and provided insufficient work-space, Inspector Nip was

-

* The prescription labels had dates on them which incorrectly extended the dating of the
prescription beyond the manufacturer’s expiration date for the product.

8
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unable to obtain many documents she requested because Respondent Chan was the only one who
had accessto the documentation ard she was not present at the time. Some documents were
reviewed. Documents showed that FFSP had dispensed a large amount of medications to Dr.
Priest *for office use” by telephoned prescriptions or pharmacy-generated'reﬁll reguests,
Inpector Nip could not locate any hand-written prescription dqcument and label from Dr., Priest,
Further, a prescription document and label for roc;t canal cement, dated April 9, 2010, fora
dentist in Newark, CA was located in the will call/on order box of the pharmacy. At the end of
the inspection, Inspector Nip asked that certain documents be forwarded to her, On May 10,
2010, Inspector Nip received some documents she requested from Respondent Chan. The
documents received indicated that seventeen dentists obtained compounded root canal cement
from FFSP within three years of March 16, 2010, |

Caﬁses of Diseipline-Respondent Brodt as Pharmacist-in-Charge at FFSP,

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Maintain Premises ~Safe Practice of Pharmacy)
(Bus. & Prof. § 4301(p) and 16 CCR § 1714(h))

24, Respondent Brodt, as Pharmecist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist

License to disciplinary actiori under Code section 4301, subdivision (o), by violating California

Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1714, subdivision (b), in that he failed to maintain the
pharmacy in a manner suitable for the safe practios of pharmacy, The circumstances are as
follows: ' |

25. OnD ecember 15, 2009 and March 16, 2010 inspectidns.at FFSP revealed that the
pharmacy was disorganized, dirty and contained insufficient unobstructed space for the safe
practice of pharmacy. The pharmacy sink was dirty and the compounding area was unsanitary.
The work spaces were covered with boxes, paperwork, and trash, The pharmacy dispensing area
was insofficlent in size to accommodate two pharmacists and a technician working at the same
time. Further, FFSP stored owtdated compounded products, expired chemicals and drugs, and
prescriptions which were 60 days old or older. Pharmacy paperwork was not located during the

nspection due to disorganization.

X
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct- Missing Quality Assurance Review Reports)
(Bus, & Prof, § 4301(0) and 16 CCR § 1711())

26, Respondent Brandon Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FESP, has subjected his
Pharmacist License to disciplinary action under Code scction 4301, subdivision (o), by violating
California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 171'1, subdivision (f), in that he failed to maintain
a tmedication error Quality Assurance Review Report in the pharmacy for the present year.
Specifically, on March 16, 2010, during an inspection at FFSP there were no Quality Assurance
Review Reports on file and immediately refrievable pertaining to medication dispensing errors
involving two prescriptions dated October 28, 2009, These reports were not on file sven though

they were requested before and not located during the December 15, 2009 inspection,

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Labeling Error)
(Bus., & Prof, §§ 4031{0), 4076 (a)(9), & 4077(a))

27. Respondent Brodt, as Phannacistwin-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist
License to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subdivision (o), by violating Code
sections 4076, subdivision (4)(9), and 4077, subdivision (a), in that on March 16, 2010, during an
inspection of the pharmacy, f‘ou:F prescriptions in the will call area which were ready for patient
pick-up were labeled with incorrect expiration dates. Bach prescription contained expiration
dates which post-dated the actual expiration dates listed on the manufacturer’s box containers, -
The circumstances of the incorrect expiration dates for the four preseriptions are explained in

paragraph 21, above,

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprefessional Conduci-Exroncous Preseriptions)
(Bus. & Prof. § 4301(0) and 16 CCR § 1761(a))

28. Respondent Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist
License to disciplinary action under Code section 4301, subdivision (o), by violating California
Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761, subdivision (a), in that FFSP dispensed numerous -
medications 1o a doctor for “office use” without obtaining fmportant information such a3 the

doctor’s office address or phone number. The circumstances are as follows:

10
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29, On or about August 10, 2007, to approximately March 12, 2010, FFSP dispensed
numerous medications to Dr, Priest for “office use.” The medications dispensed included
Adipex, Ambien, Delatestryl, Nandrolone Decanoate, Phentermins, Testosterone, and Zolpidem
Tartrate, Dr. Priest would pick up the medications himself and usually pay with cash.
R.esi::ondent Chan claimed that Dr, Priest ran a diet ¢linic. However, during this peried of time,
D, Priest primarily worked in an emergency department in a medical center in Stockton without

another known office location or office telephone number,

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{Unprofessional Conduct-Failyre to Yerify Legitimacy of Prescriptions)
(Bus. & Prof, § 4301(0) and Health and Safety Code § 11153(a))

30. Respondent Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist
License to disciplinary action umder Code section 4301, subdivision (0), by violating Health and
Safety Code sections 11 153, subdivision (a), in that Respondent FFSP dispensed medications to
Dr. Priest which were not for legitimate medical purposes in the usual conrse of his practice. The
circumstances ars as follows: B |

31.  On or about August 10, 2007 to approximately March 12, 2010, FFSP dispensed
numerous medications to Dr. Priest for “office use.” Many of these medications were in largs
quantities not ordinarily needed for “office use.” Dr. Priest would pick up the medications
himself and often pay with cash. Respondent Chan claimed that the large quantities of
medications for nfﬁcé use were needed because Dr. Priest ran a diet clinic, The medications
provided to Dr. Priest are listed in a paragraph 29, above, However, during this period of time
D1, Priest primarily worked in an emergency department in 2 medical center in Stockton without

another known office location or office telephone number,

STXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIFLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Trawsmit Dispensing Data to CURES)
{Bus, & Prof. § 4301(0) and Health and Safety Code § 11165(d))

32, Respondent Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmagist
License tordisciplinary action under Code section 4301, subdivision (o), by violating Heaith and
Safety Code sections 11165, subdivision (d), in that from on or about December 16, 2009, until
Approximately April 13, 2610, Respondent FFSP failed to transmit dispensing data on a weekly

11
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July 17, 2010, on its label, Also, en or about August 20, 2009, Respondent FFSP dispensed io

basis for Schedule II, Schedule IIT, and Schedule IV controlled substances to Conirolled
Substances Utilization Review and Evalation System (CURES),

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Maintain Compounding Records)
(Bus, & Prof. § 4301(0) and 16 CCR § 1735.3)

33. Respondent Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist
License to discjplinary action wnder Code section 4301, subdivision (o), by violating California
Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.3 in that, on or about March 16, 2007, to
approximately April 29, 2010, Respondent FFSP dispensed root canal cement to seventeen
different dentists in various quantities. However, Respondent FFSP did not maintain the
complete compounding records for the root canal cement it dispensed. Any records that FFSP did

have were not readily available,

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Labeling Error)
{Bus. & Prof, § 4301(0) and CCR § 1735.2(h))

34, Réspondcnt Brodt, as Pharmacist-in-Charge of FFSP, has subjected his Pharmacist
License to disciplinary action under Code section 43011, subdivision (o), by violating California
Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2, subdivision (k), in that Respondent FFSP dispensed
prescriptions for compounded root canal cement with expiration dates over 180 days from the
time it was prepared. The circumstances are as follows:

35.  On orabout July 17, 2009, Respondent FF8P dispensed to Dr. Le Claire prescription
number RX6405783, compounded root canal cement, which had an assigned expiration date of

Dr, Louie prescription number RX 6406838, compoundéd oot canal. cement, which had an

assigned expiration date of August 20, 2010 on its label,

Caunses of Discigline—-Resnon;'lent FFSP,
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Maintain Premises —Safe Practice of Pharmagy)
(Bus. & Prof. § 4301(0) and 16 CCR § 1714(b))

36, Respbndent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Cods

section 4301, subdivision (o), becanse of violations of California Code of Regulations, title 16,

12
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expiration dates listed on the manufacturer’s box containers. The circumstarices of the four

section 1714, subdivision {b), in that FFSP was not maintained in a manner suitable for the safe
practice of pharmacy. The circumstances are explained in paragraph 25, above.
SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessional Conduct-Missing Quality Assurance Review Report)
(Bus. & Prof. § 4301(0) and 16 CCR § 1711(f))

37. Respordent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (o), be'cause of violations of California Code of Regulations, title 16,
seotion 1711, sui:division (D), in that FFSP did not maintain a medication error Qualit}" Assurance
Review Report in the pharmacy for the present year. Specifically, on BMarch 16, 2010, during an
inspection at FFSP there were no Quality Assurance Review Reports on file and immediately -
retrievable pertaining to medication dispensing errors for two prescriptions dated October 23,
2009 and October 28, 2009, These reports were not on file even though they were requested
before and not located during the December 15, 2009 inspection.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Labeling Error)
(Bus. & Prof, §§ 4076 (a)}(9) & 4077(a))

38, Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (o), because of viﬁlations of Code section 4076, subdivision (a)(9) and
section 4077, subdivision (a), in that, on March 16, 2010, diring an inspection of FRSP, four
prescriptions in the will call area which were ready for patic_:nt pick-up were labeled with incorrect

expiration dates. Bach prescription contained expiration dates which were later than the actual

prescriptions are explained in paragraph 21, above.
| FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Unprofessional Conduct-Erroneous Prescriptions)
(Bus, & Prof. § 4301(c) and 16 CCR § 1761(a))

39.  Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, suiadivision (0}, because of violations of California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 1761, subdivision (a), in that Pharmacists and staff at FFSP dispensed numerous -

medications to a doctor for office use without obtaining important information such as the

13
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doctor’s office address or phone number. The circumstances are explained in paragraph 29,
above,

, FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Verify Legitimacy of Prescriptions)
(Bus. & Prof, § 4301(o0) and Health and Safety Code § 11153(a))

40, Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (o), because of violations of Health and Safety Code seotion 11153,
subdivision (=), in that Pharmacists and staff at FFSP dispensed medications to Dr. Priest which |
were not for legitimate medical purposes in the usual course of bis practice. The circumstances

are explained in paragraph 29, above,

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIFLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct-Failure to Transmit Dispensing Data to CURES)
(Bus. & Prof, § 4301(0) and Health and Safety Code § 11165(d))

41. | Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (o}, because of violations of Health and Safety Code section 11165,
subdivision (d), in that from on or about December 16, 2009, mati] approximately April 13, 2010,
Respondent FFSP failed to transmit dispensing data for Schedule If, Schedule 11, and Schedule
v contro lled substances to Controlled Substances Uﬁlizatioﬁ Review and Evaluation System
{CURES) on a weekly basis, |

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduet-Failure fo Maintain Compounding Records)
(Bus, & Prof, § 4301(v) and CCR § 1735.3)

42, Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (0), because of violations of California Code of Regulations, title 16,
section 1735.3, in that on or about March 16, 2007, to approximately April 29, 2010, Pharmacists
and Staff at FFSP dispensed root canal cement to seventeen different dentists in various '
quantities. However, Respondent FFSP did not maintain complete compounding records for the

root canal cement it dispensed,
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sompounded root canal cement with expiration dates over 180 days from the time it was

- tompounded root canal powder to Board investigators by March 21, 20190, as requested. The

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR BISCIPLINE
{Unprofessional Conduct-Labeling Error)
(Bus. & Prof. § 4301(e) and 16 CCR § 1735.2(h))

43, Respondent FFSP’s Pharmacy License is subject to disciplinary action under Code
section 4301, subdivision (o), because of violations of California Code of Regulations, title 16,

section 1735.2, subdiﬁsion {h), in that Pharmacists and staff at FFSP dispensed prescriptions for

prepared. The circumstances are explained in peragraph 35, above,

s Causes of Discipline-Respondent Chan.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
{(Unprofessional Conduet--Subversion of Board Investigation)
(Bus. & Prof, 4301(g))

44, Respondent Chan has subjected her Pharmacy Technieian License to disciplinary
action under seotion 4301, subdivision (g), in that she acted unprofessionally when she engaged
inn conduct that atternpted to deceive the Bouard’s investigation inte FFSP, Specifically,
Respondent Ch;etn informed Board ingpectors tsha*; the pharmacy had not compounded or
dispensed root canal powder for a long time while the pharmacy had continuously dispensed root
canal powdet to ot least 17 different dentists within the last fhree yeats from March 2007, to Apri!
2010, Further, Respondent Chan failed to submit requested dispensing records of the

requested records were not submitted until May 10, 201 0, after another inspection was conducted
at FFSP on April 29, 2010
DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

45, 'To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,
Complainant alleges that on c;r about June 13,2007, in a pi'ior action, the Board of Pharmacy
issued Citation Number CI 06 33851 and ordered Respondent to pay $1,000 in fines. That
Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth.

46, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Brodt,

Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board of Pharmacy issued

13
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Citation Number CI 09 40780 and ordered Respondent to pay $3,000 in fines by the citation, -
That Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth, '
DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

47. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Four Fifty
Sutter Pharmacy, Complainant alleges that on or about June 15, 2007, in a prior action, the Board
of Pharmacy jssued Citation Numbef CI.06 33185 and ordered Respondent Four Fifty Suiter
Pharmacy to pay $2,500 in fines. That Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if
fully set forth. ‘

48, To determine the degree of disc'ip}ine,-if any, to be imposed on Respondent Four Fifty
Sutter Pharmacy, Complainant alleges that on or about July 8, 2009, in a prior action, the Board
of Pharmacy issued Citation Number C1 08 38139 and ordered Respondent Four Fifty Suttor
Pharmacy to pay $5,000 in fines. That Citation is now {inal and is incorporated by reference as if
fully set forth, '

RAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainaﬁt requests that a hearing be held on the matters alleged in this
Accusation, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or sﬁspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 43082, jssued to Brandon
Brodt; _

2,©  Revoking or suspending Pharmacy License Number PHY45225, issued to 450 Sutter
Sn-eét Pharmacy;
"3, Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Number TCH 36761, issued to Elaine
Chan; '
it/
i
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4. Ordering Braudon Brodt, Elaine Chan, and Four Fifty Sutter Pharmacy to pay the
Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, under
Business and Professions Code section 125.3; '

5. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper,

DATED: 7’//"{‘/“ ‘ uwww

' v ROLD ™~ \
Exevutiye Officer
Board o macy

Department of Consumer Affairs

State of California
Complainam
SF2010900268
901176599 doe
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